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Registration No.
1_231001034168 {918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Bank for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the financial year and during the period from the end of the financial
year to the date of the report are:

Dato Abdullah Mat Noh

Halim Bin Haji Din (retired on 22.03.2020)

Jean-Pierre Roger Beno Bernard

Yves Maurice Guy Marie Drieux

Chia Seng Leng

Wahid Ali Mohd Khalil

Joris Maria A. Dierckx

Vijayam Nadarajah

Faisal bin Ismail {(appointed on 1.10.2020)

Dato’ Mohamed Khadar Bin Merican (appointed on 1.03.2021)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank are banking related financiat services and Islamic banking
business.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Bank
during the financial year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of operations of the Bank for the financial year are as follows:

RM'000
Profit before tax 118,234
Income tax expense (28,993)

Profit for the year 89,241

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other
than those disclosed in the financial statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the financial year, there was no issuance of new ordinary shares or debentures.



Registration No.
’-531001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EVENT SIGNIFICANT TO THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Event significant to the balance sheet date is disclosed in Note 34 of the financial statements.

EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Event subsequent to the balance sheet date is disclosed in Note 35 of the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ FEES AND BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Direclor has received or become entitled o receive
a benefit (other than the benefits shown under Directors' remuneration in Note 23 to the financial
statements) by reason of a contract made by the Bank or hy a related corporation with the Director
or with a company of which the Directer is 2 member, or with a company in which the Director has
a substantial financial interest,

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Bank is a party to any arrangements
whose object was to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate, as disclosed in this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has held shares or had beneficial interest
in the shares of the Bank. Under the Bank's Articles of Association, the Directors are not required
to hold any shares in the Bank.

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings required to be kept under Section 59 of the
Companies Act 2016, none of the Directors who held office at the end of the financial year held any
shares or debentures in the Bank or its holding company or subsidiaries of the holding company
during the financial year except as follows:

No. of ordinary shares of EUR2 each

As at As at
1.1.2020 Acquired Disposed 31.12.2020
Shares in the ultimate holding
company, BNP Paribas S.A.
Jean-Pierre Roger Beno Bernard 6,196 - - 6,196
Chia Seng Leng 3,450 - - 3,450



Registration No.
201001034168 {918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES {CONTINUED)

No. of shares

Balance Balance
as of as of
1.1.2020 Granted Disposed 31.12.2020

Rights o shares in the ultimate
holding company, BNP Paribas S. A.

Yves Maurice Guy Marie Drieux 292 - (292) -
No. of units

Balance Balance

as of as of

1.1.2020 Granted Disposed 31.12.2020

Units in Corporate Mutual Fund in

the ultimate holding company,
BNP Paribas S. A.

Chia Seng Leng 1,020 - - 1,020
By virtue of the above Directors’ interest in the ultimate holding company as detailed in the table
above, they are deemed to have an interest in the Bank and of its related companies fo the extent
the ultimate holding company has interest.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the other Directors have any interest in the shares of related
companies during and as at the end of the financial year.

DIVIDENDS
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Bank since the end of the previous financial year.

The Directors do not recommend and declared any dividend payment in respect of the current
financial year.

HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard BNP Paribas S.A., a financial institution incorporated in France, as the
immediate and uitimate holding company of the Bank.
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SHARE OPTIONS

No options have been granted by the Bank to any parties during the financial year to take up
unissued shares of the Bank.

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of any option to take
up unissued shares of the Bank. As of the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares
of the Bank under options.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

During the financial year, Directors and Officers of the Bank are covered under the Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability Insurance Group Policy in respect of liabilities arising from acts committed in their
respective capacity as, inter alia, Directors and Officers of the Bank, subject to the terms of the
policy. The total amount of Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance premium effected for the
Directors and Officers of the Bank are RM8,304 (2019: RM8,3886).

COMPLIANCE WITH BANK NEGARA MALAYSIA'S EXPECTATIONS ON FINANCIAL
REPCRTING

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Directors have taken reasonable steps to ensure
that Bank Negara Malaysia‘s expectations on finangcial reporting have been complied with including

those as set out in policy documents on Financial Reporting and Financial Reporting for Islamic
Banking Institutions.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

a. Before the financial statements of the Bank were prepared, the Directors took reasonable
steps:

i. to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad
debts and the making of provision for impairment, and satisfied themselves that all
known bad debts had been written off and that adequate provision had been made
for doubtful debts; and

ii. to ensure that any current assets, which were unlikely {o be realised in the ordinary
course of business including the values of current assets as shown in the
accounting records of the Bank had been written down to an amount which the
current assets might be expected so to realise.
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
b. At the date of this Report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

i. which would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the
provision for impairment in the financial statements of the Bank inadequate to any
substantial extent; or

ii. which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial
statements of the Bank misleading; or

fii. which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of
assets or liabilities of the Bank misleading or inappropriate.

c. At the date of this Report;

i. there are no charges on the assets of the Bank which have arisen since the end of
the financial year to secure the liahility of any other person; and

ii. there are no contingent liabilities in respect of the Bank which have arisen since
the end of the financial year other than those incurred in the normal course of
business of the Bank.

d. No contingent or other liability of the Bank has become enforceable or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in
the opinion of the Directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Bank to meet
their obligations as and when they fall due.

e. At the date of this Report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise
dealt with in this Report or the financial statements of the Bank which would render any
amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

f. In the opinion of the Directors:

i. the results of the operations of the Bank during the financial year were not
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature; and

ii. there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the
date of this Report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature
likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Bank for the financial
year in which this Report is made.
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Details of auditors’ remuneration are set out in Note 23 to the financial statements.

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The statement forms an Appendix in the Directors’ Report and is in a separate document.

BUSINESS PLAN AND OUTLOOK FOR THE NEXT FINANCIAL YEAR

Business Strategy for the financial vear ended 31 December 2020

Malaysia’s Gross Domestic Product (‘GDP') declined 5.6% in 2020 as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic. The Movement Control Order in different phases and its subsequent extension have had
a severe impact on the country's economic output, affecting consumer demand.

With no clear certainty, the global pandemic is causing an unprecedented strain to economies
worldwide with record level unemployment rates. The global economic recovery hinges on the ability
to contain the pandemic and the respective countries’ preparation in its transition to the post-
pandemic world.

Amidst the challenging times, the Bank has further emphasised focus on its customers’ needs while
also safeguarding the well-being of its employees, ensuring operational continuity.

The Bank registered profit after tax of RM89.2 million compared to RM60.1 million in 2019. The
strong performance was mainly contributed by Global Markets business. Despite the drop in OPR
and loans growth, net interest income recorded a growth of 8.4% mainly due to lower funding cost.
As a result, Net Interest Margin was at 2.20%. Operating expenses was marginally higher at
RM105.1mic; 2.2% higher than previous year mainly due to higher personnel cost.

Total assets as at 31 December 2020 stood at RM6.6 billion, RM2.4 billion higher than prior year.
The increase was contributed by Global Market activities and corporate lending activities.
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS PLAN AND OUTLOOK FOR THE NEXT FINANGCIAL YEAR {(CONTINUED)
Outlook 2021

The country’s Gross Domestic Product (‘'GDP") is expected to recover by 6.5%-7.5% in 2021, in-line
with IMF, World Bank and Ministry of Finance's projection.

While the government remain cautiously optimistic in managing future economic challenges during
this period of uncertainty, Malaysia possesses a fundamentally sound financial system, which has
proven to be resilient through challenging times.

The implementation of several short and medium term measures were targeted to reduce
unemployment and ensuring the continuity of specific sectors, with longer term measures to lay the
foundation for future growth.

The Government's effort in improving the economy generally hinges on global demand, public and
private sector expenditure, supported by a competitive interest rate environment.

In the light of these uncertainties, the Bank aims to continuously improve and provide the best level
of service and support to its customers during this challenging period.

RATINGS BY AN EXTERNAL RATING AGENCY

Rating Agency Date of rating Rating Received
Rating Agency Malaysia (‘RAM’) 01 Oct 2020 Long Term — AA2

Short Term - P1
Outlook - Stable

Rating classification description

RAM has reaffirmed BNP Paribas Malaysia Berhad's AA2/Stable/P1 financial institution ratings. The
Bank's ratings reflect the ready parental support from BNP Paribas S.A. (the Group), if needed, while
also leveraging on its parent's global franchise, international network and technical expertise. BNP
Paribas S.A. is one of the world’s largest financial institutions and among the globally systemically
important banks identified by the Financial Stahility Board.
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

AUDITORS

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), have expressed their
willingness to accept re-appointment as auditors.

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2021. Signed on behalf of the
Board of Directors:

— = /
WA D KHALIL DATO ABDULLAH MAT NOH

IRECTOR DIRECTOR

Kuala Lumpur
18 March 2021
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’—231001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Mataysia)

SHARIAH COMMITTEE'S REPORT

In the name of Allah, the Beneficent, the Merciful

In line with the regulatory requirement, this report served as a disclosure on Shariah Governance
policies and practices, which includes the following;-

Shariah Committee's Responsibility

The Shariah Committee is an independent oversight function as required by Bank Negara Malaysia
{'BNM’) and the Islamic Financial Services Act 2013 ('IFSA 2013").

We have the responsibility to provide objective and sound advice to BNP Paribas Malaysia Berhad
(“the Bank”) to ensure that its aims and operations, business, affairs and activities comply with the
Shariah. We are accountable for the quality, accuracy and soundness of our own decision or advice.
We understand that the Board have institutionalised a robust Shariah governance framework to
ensure its oversight accountability over Shariah governance and compliance reflect the integration
of Shariah governance considerations within the business and risk strategies.

In line with our responsibility, we have endorsed internal controls to ensure the operations of Islamic
Banking Window of the Bank comply with Shariah. We have conducted our deliberation in
accordance with the regulations issued by BNM and Securities Commission of Malaysia. The
regulations require that we comply with ethical requirements and to plan and perform the deliberation
to obtain reasonable assurance about the state of Shariah compliance of the Bank.

Opinicn on the State of Bank’s Shariah Compliance

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, we have reviewed:

1. The principles and contracts relating to the transactions and applications introduced by the
Bank; and
2. The products, processes, procedures, activities, transactional documents and contracts

entered into and/or offered by the Bank.

For the purpose of these reviews, we have assessed the works carried out by the Shariah
Compliance Review, Shariah Audit and Operational Permanent Control review functions, which we
considered necessary to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
Bank has not violated Shariah rules and principles. We note that the reviews and audit carried out
by these functions, were planned and involved assessment based on the relevant test sampling for
each type of transactions, the relevant documentations and procedures adopted by the Bank.



Registration No.
201001034168 (218091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

SHARIAH COMMITTEE'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

'Opinion on the State of Bank's Shariah Compliance (continued)

In our opinion, for the financial year ended 31 December 2020, nothing has come to the Shariah
Committee’s attention that causes the Shariah Committee to believe that the operations, business,
affairs and activities of the Bank involve any material Shariah non-compliances.

We, the members of Shariah Committee of the Bank, fo the best of our knowledge, have obtained
sufficient and appropriate evidence to form Shariah compliant opinion that all Shariah advice issued
by us comply with the ruting of the Shariah Advisory Council of BNM and Securities Commission of
Malaysia during the financial year.

W i

Muhammad Ali Jinnah Bin Ahmad
(Chairman)

T

Mazrul Shahir Bin Md Zuki
{Member)

Dr Sa'id Adékunle Mikail
(Member)

10
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 201001034168 (918091-T)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of BNP Paribas Malaysia Berhad (“the Bank”) give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia.

What we have audited

We have audited the financial statements of the Bank, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 15 to 139.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence and other ethical responsibilities

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the Report of the Directors and Shariah Committee's Report, but does not include the financial
statements of the Bank and our auditors’ report thereon.

PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), Chartered Accountants, Level 10, 1 Sentral, Jalan
Rakyat, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur Malaysia
T: +60 (3) 2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwe.com/my

11
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No. 201001034168 (918091-T)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon (continued)

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Bank does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Bank, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements of the Bank or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the Bank
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements of the Bank that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Bank, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Bank as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

12



i =

pwc

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD (CONTINUED)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 201001034168 (918091-T)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Bank,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Bank or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Bank,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Bank represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

13
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD (CONTINUED)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 201001034168 (918091-T)

OTHER MATTERS

This report is made solely to the member of the Bank, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other
person for the content of this report.

’Z-W.ﬁ»my— A

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS PLT
LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146
Chartered Accountants

Kuala Lumpur
18 March 2021

14



Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

ASSETS

Cash and short-term funds

Reverse repurchase agreements

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL™)

Financial investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income ("FVOCI")

Loans, advances and financing

Derivative financial assets

Other assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Tax recoverable

Deferred tax assets

TOTALASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements of banks and
other financial institutions

Repurchase agreements

Derivative financial liabilities

Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Share capital

Retained profits

Reserves
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S
EQUITY

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

-
SO oo~

1
12

13

14

15

17

18

29

2020 2019
RM'000 RM000
1,072,884 1,431,636
974,678 -
413,967 100,233
1,335,231 957,509
1,338,407 1,189,887
1,296,293 459,442
195,077 29,072
7,532 9,705

24 810

7,717 13,958
3,416 3,721
6,645,226 4,196,074
2,300,820 1,638,737
840,883 940,422
285,353 -
1,111,173 431,077
1,226,532 399,550
5,764,761 3,409,786
650,000 650,000
223,91 125,086
6,554 11,202
880,465 786,288
6,645,226 4,196,074
98,187,436 90,352,648

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

15



Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Interest income
Interest income for financial assets at FVTPL
Interest expense

Net interest income
Net income from Islamic banking business

Other operating income
Other operating expenses
Expected credit losses

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
ftems that may be reclassified subsequently fo
profit or loss:
Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income
¢ Net changes in fair value

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Note

20
20
21

33

22
23
24

25

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
123,293 143,668

25,543 36,434
(31,178) (71,558)
117,658 108,544

344 424
118,002 108,968
102,786 81,511
(105,117) (102,821)
2,563 (6,163)
118,234 81,495
(28,993) (21,388)
89,241 60,107
4,936 1,520
4,936 1,520
94,177 61,627

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Registration No.
201001034168 {(918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Revaluation
reserve-
financial
Share Statutory Regulatory  investments Retained
Note capital reserve reserve at FVOCI profits Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'O00
At 1 January 2020 650,000 - 9,584 1,618 125,086 786,288
Profit for the year - - - - 89,241 89,241
Transfer to retained profits - - (2,5684) - 9,584 -
Other comprehensive income - - - 4,936 - 4,936
At 31 December 2020 650,000 - - 6,554 223,911 880,465
At 1 January 2019 650,000 - 15,234 o8 124,329 789,661
Profit for the year - - - - 60,107 60,107
Transfer to retained profits - - {5,650) - 5,650 -
Other comprehensive income - - - 1,520 - 1,520
Dividend on ordinary shares 19 - - - - {65,000) (65,000)
1,618 125,086 786,288

At 31 December 2019 650,000 - 9,584

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

17



Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIALYEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustment for:
Unrealised gain on derivative financial instrument
Unrealised loss on financial assets at FVTPL
Unrealised lossf(gain) on foreign exchange
Amortisation of premium less accretion of discount
Realised gain on financial investments at FVOC]
Interest income on financial investments at FVOCI
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Expected credit losses (write back)/made for impairment
on loans, advances and financing

Operating (loss)/profit before working capital changes

(Increase)/Decrease in:

Deposits and placement with banks and other financial
institutions

Reverse repurchase agreements

Financial assets at FVTPL

Loans, advances and financing

Property, plant and equipment

Other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in:
Deposit from customers
Deposit and placements of banks and other
financial institution
Derivative financial assets/iiabilities
Repurchase agreements
Other liabilities

Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities
Income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities

18

2020
RM'000

118,234

(125,715)
222

(44,310)
7,748

(9,560)

(40,012)
2,575
886

(2,563)

(92,495)

(974,678)
(313,956)
(145,957)
1,121
(166,005)

662,083

(99,539)
13,270

285,353

829,150

(1,653)
(22,446)

(24,099)

2019
RM'000

81,495

(62,053)
2,315
69,141
3,114

(1,129)

(33,718)
3,176
898

6,163

69,402

300,110
40,225

1,632,102
(27,748)
(9,809)

27,462

(330,834)

(1,819,343)
109,234

179,821

179,622
(39,088)

140,534



Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment
Interest income on financial investments at FVOCI
Net purchase of financial investments at

FVQCI
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid
Payment for lease liabilities

Net cash used in financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and shori-term funds

19

2020
RM’000

(1,522)
37,151

(368,113)

(332,484)

(2,169-)

(2,169)

(358,752)

1,431,636

1,072,884

1,072,884

2019
RM'000

(1,527)
30,351

(673,770)

(644,946)

(65,000)
(2,785)

(67,785)

(572,197)

2,003,833

1,431,636

1,431,636



Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities as following:

Cash changes Non-cash changes
Net Cash
Flows from
As at Financing Lease Interest As at

01.01.2020 Activities modification Expense 31.12.2020
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Lease 7,428 (2,169) (520) 174 4,913
Cash changes Non-cash changes

Net Cash

Flows from
As at Financing Interest As at

01.01.2019 Activities  Additions Expense 31.12.2019
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Lease 8,116 (2,785) 1,818 279 7,428

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION
The Bank is a limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.

The principal activities of the Bank are banking related financial services and Islamic banking
business.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Bank during
the financial year.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Bank is located at Level 48A, Vista
Tower, The Intermark, 348 Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

The financial statements of the Bank have been authorised by the Board of Directors for issuance
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 18 March 2021.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards (‘MFRS'), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, unless otherwise
indicated in this summary of accounting policies.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. It also requires Directors to exercise
their judgement in the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies. Although these estimates
and judgement are based on the Directors' best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
results may differ. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective and
applicable to the Bank

The Bank has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2020:

. The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (Revised 2018)

. Amendments to MFRS 101 and MFRS 108 “Definition of Material”

. Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 139 and MFRS 7 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform”
The adoption of these new standards, amendments to published standards and new
interpretation did not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Bank in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

The nature of the new standards are described below:

(i) The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting {Revised 2018)

The International Accounting Standard Board (“IASB") issued an update to the
Conceptual Framework in April 2018. It sets out a comprehensive set of concepts
for financial reporting, standard setting, guidance for preparers in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to others in their efforts to understand
and interpret the standards. The Conceptual Framework includes some new
concept, provides updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities
and clarifies some important concepts. The main changes in the Conceptual
Framework are as follows:

e Reintroduces the concept of stewardship and the information needed to
assess management's stewardship;

» Reintroduces the concept of prudence;

» Defines concept of measurement uncertainty;

» Reinstates an explicit reference to the need to “faithfully represent the
substance of the phenomena that it purports to represent”; and

« Made changes to the definitions of an Asset and a Liability.

The adoption of the framework is not anticipated to have significant impact on the
Bank's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

{a) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective and

applicable to the Bank (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Amendments to MFRS 101 and MFRS 108 “Definition of Material”

Amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature of magnitude of
information, or both. The Bank will need to assess whether the information, either
individually or in combination with other information, is material in the context of
the financial statements.

The amendments also explain that information is obscured if it is communicated in
a way that would have a similar effect as omitting or misstating the information.

These amendments, if any, are not expected to have any impact on the Bank’s
financial statements.

Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 139 and MFRS 7 “Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform”

The amendments, issued to address the pre-replacement issues arising from the
interest rate benchmark reform recommendations by Financial Stability Board,
provides temporary relief from applying specific hedge accounting requirements to
hedging relationships directly affected by the interest rate benchmark reform until
the uncertainty arising from this reform is longer present.

The interest rate benchmark reform may affect the application of cash flow hedge
accounting because at some point in time, forecast cash flows based on interbank
offered rates may no longer meet the highly probable requirement due to
uncertainties arising from interest rate benchmark reform. The relief provided by
the amendments requires an entity to assume that the interest rate on which the
hedged cash flows are based does not change as a result of the reform. Similarly,
an entity shall assume that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged item,
hedged risk and/or hedging instrument are based is not altered as a result of the
interest rate benchmark reform when performing hedge effectiveness
assessments. The amendments are applied prospectively from annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early adoption is permitted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that have been issuad
but not vet effective and applicable to the Bank

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective
for financial year beginning or after 1 January 2021. None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the financial statements of the Bank.

(i)

(i)

Amendments to MFRS 16 COVID-19 'Related Rent Concessions' {effective 1 June
2020)

The amendments grant an optional exemption for lessees to account for a rent
concession related to COVID-19 in the same way as they would if they were not
lease madifications. In many cases, this will result in accounting for the concession
as a variable lease payment in the period(s) in which the event or condition that
triggers the reduced payment occurs. The amendments, however, do not make any
changes to lessor accounting.

The exemption conly applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are met:

(@) the change in lease payments resdults in revised consideration for the lease that

15 substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

(b) anyreduction inlease payments affects only payments due on or before 30 June

2021; and

(c) thereis no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

The amendments shall be applied retrospectively.

Annual Improvements to MFRS 9 ‘Fees in the 10% test for derecognition of
financial liabilities’ (effective 1 January 2022)

It clarifies that only fees paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including the fees paid or received on each other’s behalf, are included in the cash
flow of the new loan when performing the 10% test.

The Bank shall apply the amendment to financial liabilities that aré maodified or

exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
Bank first applies the amendments.

24



Registration No,

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A

Financial assets

The Bank initially recognises financial assets measured at amortised cost on the date that
they are originated. All other financial assets {including assets desighated at fair value
through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the settlement date, which is the date that
the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or
retained by the Bank is recognised as a separate asset or liahility.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except for those
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss which are initially measured
at fair value.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost;

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the foliowing conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets: and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

25



Registration No,

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Financial assets (continued)

Classification of financial assets (continued)

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit
orloss ('FVTPL").

Despite the foregoing, the Bank may make the following irrevocable election/designation at
initial recognition of a financial asset:

. the Bank may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met; and

. the Bank may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost
or FVOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.,

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate (‘EIR’), transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit
losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest
rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit
losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured
at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Financial assets {continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method (continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments
measured subsequently at amortised cost and at FVOCI. For financiat instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting
periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Bank recognises interest
income by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from initial recognition. The calculation does not revert to the gross basis even
if the credit risk of the financial asset subsequently improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss.
Term placements with banks and other financial institutions, term placements due from BNP
Paribas related entities, bills receivable from customers, loans to customers and other

receivables consists of financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Debt instruments classified as FVOCI

Debt instruments recorded as investment securities are classified as FVOCI. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 31 fair value of financial assets and liabilities.
The debt instruments classified as FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, changes in the carrying amount of these debt instruments classified as
FVOCI as a result of foreign exchange gains and losses, impairment gains or losses, and
interest income calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss.
The amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would
have been recognised in profit or loss if these debt instruments classified as FVOCI had been
measured at amortised cost. All other changes in the carrying amount of these debt
instruments classified as FVYOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of “Revaluation reserves”. When these debt instruments
classified as FVOCI are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

27



Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

. Investments in equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, unless the Bank
designates an equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent
consideration arising from a business combination as FVOCI on initial recognition.,

. Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVOCI criteria
are classified as FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the
amortised cost criteria or the FVOC! criteria may be designated as FVTPL upon
initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The
Bank has not designated any debt instruments as FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value as at each reporting date, with any
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a
designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Interest income
and Other operating income' line. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note
31 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

A Financial assets (continued)

Reverse Repurchase agreements

Securities temporarily acquired under reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised
in the Bank's statement of financial position. The corresponding receivable is recognised
in the appropriate asset category on the statement of financial position except in the case
of reverse repurchase agreements contracted for trading purposes, where the
corresponding receivable is recognised under “Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss”.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate as at each reporting
date. Specifically,

. for financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
‘Other operating income’ line item;

. for debt instruments measured at FVOCI that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences on the amortised cost of the debt instrument
are recognised in profit or loss in the “Other operating income” line item; and

. for financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging

relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the '‘Other
operating’ line item.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Bank recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (‘ECL’) on investments in
debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI, as well as on loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. No impairment loss is recognised for
investments in equity instruments. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

With the exception of Purchased or originated credit-impaired ("POC") financial assets
(which are considered separately below), ECL are required to be measured through a loss
allowance at an amount equal to:

) 12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,
(referred to as Stage 1); or

. full lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over
the life of the financial instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other
financial instruments, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

ECL represent a probability-weighted estimate of the difference between present vaiue of
cash flows according to contract and present value of cash flows the Bank expect to
receive, over the remaining life of the financial instrument. For financial contracts, the ECL
is the difference between the expected payments to reimburse the holder of the guaranteed
debt instrument less any amounts that the Bank expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.

The measurement of ECL reflects:

. any unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a
range of possible outcomes;
the time value of money; and
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Bank measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of
loans that share similar economic risk characteristics. The measurement of the loss
allowance is based on the present value of the asset's expected cash flows using the
asset's original EIR, regardless of whether it is measured on an individual basis or a
collective basis.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-
impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment
includes observable data about the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer:
. a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
. the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the

borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider,;

. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties; or

. the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event—instead, the combined effect of
several events may have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired. The Bank
assesses whether debt instruments that are financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI are credit-impaired at each reporting date. To assess if sovereign and corporate
debt instruments are credit impaired, the Bank considers factors such as bond yields, credit
ratings and the ability of the borrower to raise funding.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to
a deterioration in the borrower’s financial condition, unless there is evidence that as a result
of granting the concession the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. For financial assets where
concessions are contemplated but not granted the asset is deemed credit impaired when
there is observable evidence of creditimpairment including meeting the definition of
default.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Financial assets (continued)
Definition of default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is
used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss
allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the
probability of default (‘PD') which affects both the measurement of ECL and the
identification of a significant increase in credit risk.

The Bank considers the following as constituting an event of default;

. the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the
Bank; or
. the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full.

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of
different types of assets.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit ebligation, the Bank takes into
account both qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on
the type of the asset, for example in corporate lending a qualitative indicator used is the
breach of covenants. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and non-payment on
another obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis. The Bank uses
a variety of sources of information to assess default, which are either developed internally
or obtained from external sources.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Bank monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts that are subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a
significant increase in credit risk the Bank will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime
rather than 12-month ECL.

The Bank’s accounting policy is not to use the practical expedient that financial assets with
‘low’ credit risk at the reporting date are deemed not to have had a significant increase in
credit risk. As a result, the Bank monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts that are subject to impairment for significant increase in
credit risk.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Financial assets {continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Bank compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the
risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current
reporting date when the financial instrument was first recognised. In making this
assessment, the Bank considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort, based on the Bank's historical
experience and expert credit assessment including forward-looking information.

Multiple economic scenarios form the basis of determining the probability of default at initial
recognition and at subsequent reporting dates. Different economic scenarios will lead to a
different probability of default. It is the weighting of these different scenarios that forms the
basis of a weighted average probability of default that is used to determine whether credit
risk has significantly increased.

Forward-looking information includes the future prospects of the industries in which the
Bank's counterparties operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various internal and external sources of actual and forecast economic
information. The Bank allocates its counterparties to a relevant internal credit risk grade
depending on their credit quality. The guantitative information is a primary indicator of
significant increase in credit risk and is based on the change in lifetime PD by comparing:

. the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date; with

. the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated based on facts
and circumstances at the time of initial recognition of the exposure.

The PDs used are forward looking and the Bank uses the same methodologies and data
used to measure the loss allowance for ECL.

The qualitative factors that indicate significant increase in credit risk are reflected in PD
models on a timely basis. However, the Bank still considers separately some gualitative
factors to assess if credit risk has increased significantly. There is particular focus on assets
that are included on a “watch list” given an exposure is on a watch list once there is a
concern that the creditworthiness of the specific counterparty has deteriorated.

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure,

a given change, in absolute terms, in the PD will he more significant for a financial
instrument with a lower initial PD than compared to a financial instrument with a higher PD.
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A

Financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

As a back-stop when an asset becomes 30 days past due, the Bank considers that a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred and the asset is in stage 2 of the impairment
moaodel, i.e. the loss allowance is measured as the lifetime ECL.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Bank has no reasonable expectations
of recovering the financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case
when the Bank determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Bank may apply enforcement activities to
financial assets written off.

Recoveries resulting from the Bank's enforcement activities will result in impairment credit.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities “at fair value through profit or
loss” or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the
financial liability and is included in the “other operating income” line in the statement of
comprehensive income.

However, for non-derivative financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is recognised in OCI, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in OC! would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognised in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financiaf liability’s credit risk that are recognised
in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to
retained earnings upon derecognition of the financial liability.
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B

Financial liabilities (continued)

For issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are designated as at
FVTPL all gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.,

In making the determination of whether recognising changes in the liability’s credit risk in
OCI will create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Bank assesses
whether it expects that the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk will be offset in
profit or loss by a change in the fair value of another financial instrument measured at
FVTPL. This determination is made at initial recognition.

Repurchase Agreements

Securities temporarily sold under repurchase agreements continue to be recorded in the
Bank's statement of financial position in the category of securities to which they belong.
The corresponding liability is recognised in the appropriate debt category on the statement
of financial position except in the case of repurchase agreements contracted for trading
purposes where the corresponding liability is classified under “Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss”.

Qther financial liabilities

Deposits of non-bank customers, deposits and balances of banks and other financial
institutions, amounts due to head office and other branches and related companies, trade
and other payables and other liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.
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c

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair values. Fair values are
obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions,
and valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and
as liabilities when fair value is negative. Changes in the fair value of any derivatives that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the statement of income.

The best evidence of fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price
(i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of the
instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions
in the same instrument {i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable markets. When such
evidence exists, the Bank recognises the fair value of derivatives in statement of income
immediately.

Recognition of interest/profit income and interest/profit expense

Interest/profit income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are
recognised within “interest/profit income” and “interest/profit expense’ in the profit or loss
using the effective interest/profit method.

The effective interest/profit method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest/profit income or
interest/profit expense over the relevant period. The effective interest/profit rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the expected
life of the financial instruments or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest/profit rate, the Bank takes into account all contractual terms of the financial
instrument and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
instrument and are an integral part of the effective interest/profit rate, but not future credit
losses.

Interest/profit on impaired financial assets is recognised using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Income from Islamic banking business is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance
with the principles of Shariah.
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E

Recognition of revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised by reference to each distinct performance obligation promised in
the contract with customer when or as the Bank transfer the control of the goods or services
promised in a contract and the customer obtains control of the goods and services.
Depending on the substance of the respective contract with customer, the control of the
promised goods or services may transfer over time or at point in time.

A contract with customer exists when the contract has commercial substance, the Bank
and customer have approved the contract and intend to perform their respective
obligations, the Bank’s and the customer’s rights regarding the goods or services to be
transferred and the payment terms can be identified, and it is probable that the Bank will
collect the consideration to which it will be entitied to in exchange of those goods or
services,

At the inception of each contract with customer, the Bank assess the contract to identify
distinct performance obligations, being the units of account that determine when and how
revenue from the contract with customer is recognised.

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration to which the Bank expect to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the customers,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. If the amount of consideration varies,
the Bank estimate the amount of consideration that it expects to be entitled based on the
expected value or the most likely outcome but the estimation is constrained up to the
amount that is highly probable of no significant reversal in the future. If the contract with
customer contains more than one distinct performance obligation, the amount of
consideration is allocated to each distinct performance obligation based on the prices of
the goods or services promised in the contract.

The consideration allocated to each performance obligation is recognised as revenue when
or as the customer obtains control of the goods or services. At the inception of each
contract with customer, the Bank determine whether control of the goods or services for
each performance obligation is transferred over time or at a point in time. Revenue is
recognised over time if the control over the goods or services are transferred over time.
Revenue for performance obligation that is not satisfied over time is recognised at the point
in time at which the customer obtains control of the promised goods or services.
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E

Recognition of revenue from contracts with customers {continued)
The following specific recognition criteria must be met before revenue is recognised:

Fee and commission income

The Bank earn fee and commission income from a diverse range of services provided to
their customers. Fee income can be divided into the following categories:

Fee income earned from services that are provided over a period of time

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period
by reference to the stage of completion of the services. These fees include loan
arrangement, commission income and advisory fees. Loan commitments fees for loans
that are unlikely to be drawn down are recognised over the commitment period on a
straight-line basis.

Fee income from providing transactions services

Fees or components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognised after
fulfilling the corresponding criteria.

Success fee from advisory services

Fee from such activities can only be determined at the end of the transaction in view of the
fact that the final consideration is subject a wide range of variables such as market price
fluctuation, demand / supply etc.
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F

Currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of the Bank are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ('RM"), which is also the Bank’s functional
currency. Alt values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RM'000) except where otherwise
indicated.

Foreign currency transactions

The methods used to account for assets and liabilities relating to foreign currency
transactions entered into by the Bank, and to measure the foreign exchange risk arising on
such transactions, depend on whether the asset or liability in question is classified as a
monetary or a non-monetary item.

Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency of the Bank at the closing rate. Translation differences are recognised
in profit or loss, except for those arising from financial instruments designated as a cash
flow hedge or a net investment hedge, which are recognised in shareholder’s equity.

Non-monetary assets may be measured either at historical cost or at fair value. Non-
monetary assets expressed in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction if they are measured at historical cost, and at the closing rate if
they are measured at fair value.

Translation differences on non-monetary assets expressed in foreign currencies and
measured at fair value (variabie-income securities) are recognised in profit and loss if the
asset is classified under “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”, and in
shareholders’ equity if the asset is classified under “Available-for-sale financial assets”,
unless the financial asset in question is designated as an item hedged against foreign
exchange risk in a fair value hedging relationship, in which case the translation difference
is recognised in profit or loss.
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G

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets shown on the statement of financial
position comprise assets used in operations. Assets used in operations are those used in
the provision of services or for administrative purposes, and include non-property assets
leased by the Bank as lessor under operating leases.

Software developed internally by the Bank that fulfils the criteria for capitalisation is
capitalised at direct development cost, which includes external costs and the labour costs
of employees directly attributable to the project.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation and any impairment
losses.

The depreciable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is
calculated after deducting the residual value of the asset. Only assets leased by the Bank
as lessor under operating leases are presumed to have a residual value, as the useful life
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets used in operations is generally the
same as their economic life.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are depreciated or amortised using
the straightline method over the useful life of the asset. Depreciation and amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss. An intangible asset with an indefinite usefu! life shall
not be amortised.

Renovation work-in-progress is not depreciated until they have been completed and ready
for commercial operation.

Where an asset consists of a number of components that may require replacement at
regular intervals, or that have different uses or different patterns of consumption of
economic benefits, each component is recognised separately and depreciated using a
method appropriate to that component.
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G

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (continued)

The depreciation is made at the following rates:

Office equipment 20%
Renovation and installation 16.67%
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 20%
Computer equipment and hardware 20% - 33.33%

Software maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. However, expenditure that is
regarded as upgrading the software or extending its useful life is included in the initial
acquisition or production cost.

Depreciable property, pfant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for impairmern
if there is an indication of potential impairment at the end of the reporting period. Non-
depreciable assets are tested for impairment at least annually, using the same method as
for goodwill ailocated to cash-generating units.

If there is an indication of impairment, the new recoverable amount of the asset is compared
with the carrying amount. If the asset is found to be impaired, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss. This loss is reversed in the event of a change in the estimated
recoverable amount or if there is no longer an indication of impairment. Impairment losses
are taken to profit or loss.

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets used
in operations are recognised in profit or loss.
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H Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Short-term benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees
of the Bank. Short-term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual
leave are recognised when services are rendered by employees that increase their
entitlement to future compensated absences, and short-term non-accumulating
compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences
occur,

Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the
Bank pays fixed contributions into separate entities or funds and will have no legal
or constructive obligation to pay further contributions If any of the funds do not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the
current and preceding financial years. Such contributions are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred. As required by law, companies in Malaysia
make such contributions to the Employees Provident Fund ("EPF™).

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Shared-based compensation

BNP Paribas has set out share-based payment compensation for certain
employees, including stock option and share award plans implemented as part of
loyalty schemes and a Global Share-based Incentive Plan. As part of the BNP
Paribas Group’s variable remuneration policy, certain high-performing and newly
recruited employees are offered a loyalty bonus scheme, entitling them to specific
share-based remuneration, payable over the several years, and subject to the
condition that the employees remain within the BNP Paribas Group.

Under MFRS 2 “Share-based payment", the Bank makes a charge to profit or loss

in connection with expenses relating to share-based payments from grant date to
vesting date.
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{ Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds in the statement of financial position comprise of cash and bank
balances with banks and other financial institutions and short-term deposits maturing within
one month.

J Current and deferred tax

Current tax expense is determined according to the Malaysian tax laws and includes all
faxes based upon the taxable profits.

Deferred tax is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the amount attributed to assets and liabilities for tax purposes and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and
loss,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale securities,
which are charged or credited directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity
and is subsequently recognised in profit or loss together with the deferred gain or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the asset is realised or the liabilities settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Bank intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

K Leases

Accounting by lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use ('ROU’) asset and a corresponding liability at the
date on which the leased asset is available for use by the Bank.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Bank allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. The Bank does not separate lease and non-lease components. Both
components are accounted for as a single lease component and payments for both
components are included in the measurement of lease liability.
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L Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models, as appropriate except for assets/liabilities that are
classified as Level 3 fair value hierarchy. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative. Changes in the fair value of
any derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the
statement of income.

The best evidence of fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price
(i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of the
instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions
in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation
technigue whose variables include only data from observable markets. When such
evidence exists, the Bank recognise the fair value of derivatives in the statement of income
immediately.

The Bank documents at the inception of the hedging transaction, the risk management
objective & strategy and the economic relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items including whether the hedging instrument is expected to offset changes in
cash flows of hedged items.

If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk
management objective remains unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge
accounting, the hedge relationship will be rebalanced by adjusting either the volume of the
hedging instrument or the volume of the hedged item so that the hedge ratio aligns with
the ratio used for risk management purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness is calculated and
accounted for in profit or loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing.

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability
when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is classified as
a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12
months. Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Preparation of the financial statements involves making judgements, assumptions and estimates
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. They are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant fators, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

In the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies, the following significant judgements,
estimates and assumptions made by the management:

. the measurement of expected credit losses. This applies in particular to the assessment of
significant increase in credit risk, the models and assumptions used to measure expected
credit losses, the determination of the different economic scenarios and their weighting. The
detailed judgements, assumptions and estimates made are disclosed in Note 3A;

. the use of internally-developed models to measure positions in financial instruments that are
not quoted in active markets the detailed judgements, assumptions and estimates are
disclosed in Note 31;

. calculations of the fair value of unquoted financial instruments classified in “Financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income”, or in “Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss”, whether as assets or liabilities, and more generally calculations of the
fair value of financial instruments subject to a fair value disclosure requirement.

CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS

2020 2019
RM000 RM'000

At amortised cost:
Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions 29,608 36,029
Money at call and deposit placements maturing within one month 1,043,276 1,395,607
1,072,884 1,431,636
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (‘FVTPL)

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
At Fair Value:
Government securities:
Malaysian Government Securities 381,477 87,387
Malaysian Government Investment Issues 32,490 12,846

413,967 100,233

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(‘FVOCI')

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
At Fair Value:
Government securities:
Malaysian Government Securities 311,624 316,310
Malaysian Government Investment Issues 422,248 232,980
Bank Negara Malaysia Debt Securities 601,359 408,219

1,335,231 967,509
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING

2020 2019
RM000 RM'000
At Amortised Cost;
(0 By type
Revolving credit 827,750 669,493
Term {oans 376,129 420,681
Trust receipts 131,880 80,289
Other trade bills discounted - 6,695
Overdrafts 7,544 18,500
Gross loans, advances and financing® 1,343,303 1,195,658
Less: Expected Credit Losses {'ECL") (4,896) (5,771)

Net loans, advances and financing 1,338,407 1,189,887

Note :  Included in the loans, advances and financing, funding extended to BNP Paribas
Najmah (an Islamic Banking window in the Bank) under Profit Sharing
Investment Account (PSIA) is RM nil (FY2019: RM55 million). The PSIA is a
contract based on the Wakalah principle.
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

By type of customer

Domestic business enterprises
Financial institutions

By interest rate

Variable rate:
Cost plus

By residual contractual maturity

Maturing within one year
More than one year to five years
More than five years

By geographical distribution

In Malaysia

By Sector

Manufacturing

Mining and quarrying
Construction

Wholesale and retail
Financial services
Other business services
Real estate activities

2020
RM'000

1,323,634
19,769

1,343,303

1,343,303

1,343,303

1,015,886
211,467
115,950

1,343,303
1,343,303

840,551
36,157
3,000
65,575
19,769
197,740
80,511

1,343,303
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2019
RM'000

1,195,658

1,165,658

1,195,658

1,195,658

903,471
164,829
137,358

1,195,658

1,195,658

924,316
10,301
10,001
28,375

212,255
10,410

1,195,658
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (CONTINUED)

{vii) Movements in ECL on loans, advances and financing are as foliows;

12 Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

month not credit credit
ECL impaired impaired
{Stage 1) {Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'C00
2020
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,168 4,603 - 5,771
Change in credit risk 49 (49) - -
Allowance made
during the financia! year 1,301 2,430 - 3,731
Derecognised during the financial
year {208) (4,398) - (4,606)
Balance at end of financial year 2,310 2,586 - 4,896
2020
Loss allowance for non-credit-impaired exposures and
regulatory reserves of no less than 1% to total credit
exposures, net of loss allowance for credit-impaired
exposures 0.3%

BNM Guidelines on Financial Reporting/Financial Reporting for Islamic Banking Institutions requires
banking institutions to maintain in aggregate, loss allowance for non credit-impaired exposures and
regulatory reserve of no less than 1% of total credit exposures, net of loss allowance for credit-
impaired exposures.

In 2020, the regulatory reserve held against expected losses is reduced to 0%, a COVID-19 related
measure to drawdown prudential buffers as permitted by BNM.
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (CONTINUED)

{vii} Movements in ECL on loans, advances and financing are as follows: (continued)

12  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
month not credit credit
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
RM'000 RM’Q00 RM000 RM"000
2019
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,243 176 - 1,419
Change in credit risk (100) 100 - -
Allowance made during the financial
year 545 4,432 - 4,977
Derecognised during the financial
year (491) {1) - (492)
Exchange differences (29) (104) - (133)
Balance at end of financial year 1,168 4,603 - 5771
2019
Loss allowance for non-credit-impaired exposures and
regulaiory reserves of no less than 1% to total credit
exposures, net of loss allowance for credit-impaired
exposures 1.0%

50




Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (CONTINUED)

(viliy  Movements on loans, advances and financing are as follows:

2020

Balance at beginning of financial year

Change in credit risk

Purchases and origination

Derecognised during the financial
year

Balance at end of financial year

2019

Balance at beginning of financial year

Change in credit risk

Purchases and origination

Derecognised during the financial
year

Balance at end of financial year

12 Lifetime ECLL  Lifetime ECL
month not credit credit
ECL impaired impaired
{Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
1,061,318 134,340 - 1,195,658
{27,007) 27,007 - -
517,175 51,565 - 568,740
(310,768) {110,327) - {421,095)
1,240,718 102,585 - 1,343,303
12 Llifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
month not credit credit
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2} (Stage 3) Total
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
1,100,317 69,404 - 1,169,721
(131,419) 131,419 - -
489,782 - - 489,782
(397,362) (66,483) - (463,845)
1,061,318 134,340 - 1,195,658
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Derivative financial instruments are financial instruments whose values change in response to
changes in prices or rates (such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and security prices) of
the underiying instruments. These instruments allow the Bank to transfer, modify or reduce its
foreign exchange and interest rate risks via hedge relationships. Most of the Bank's derivative
trading activities relate to deals with customers which are normally laid off with counterparties. The
Bank may also take positions with the expectation to gain from favourable movements in prices,
rates or indices.

At the end of the reporting period, the Bank has positions in the following types of derivatives:

2020
Notional Assets Liabilities
RM'000 RM'000 RM'G00
Derivatives held for frading at
fair vaiue through profit or loss
Foreign exchange derivatives:
Currency forwards 16,227,549 300,124 (172,439)
Currency swaps 33,427,620 452,036 (664,537)
Currency options 428,929 7,018 (78)
Currency spot 561,607 1,724 (300)
Interest rate derivatives:
Interest rate swaps 45,894,726 505,655 (255,512)
Credit derivatives:
Credit default swaps 911,204 29,736 (18,307)
Total derivative assets/(liabilities) 97,451,535 1,296,293 (1,111,173)
2019
Notional Assets Liabilities
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Derivatives held for trading at
fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange derivatives:
Currency forwards 11,883,718 85,393 (83,287)
Currency swaps 42,683,439 215,828 {285,375)
Currency options 928,438 6,792 (1,916)
Currency spot 154,524 243 (9)
Interest rate derivatives:
Interest rate swaps 32,779,249 120,390 (48,559)
Interest rate options 200,000 - (2,610)
Credit derivatives:
Credit default swaps 1,072,940 30,796 (9,321)
Total derivative assets/{liabilities) 89,702,308 459,442 (431,077)
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The table shows the fair values of derivative financia! instruments, recorded as assets or ligbilities,
together with their notional amounts. The notional amount, recorded at gross, is the basis upon
which changes in the vaiue of derivatives are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume
of transactions outstanding at the end of the reporting period and are indicative of neither the market
risk nor the credit risk.

The fair values of the Bank's derivative financial instruments are estimated by reference to quoted
market prices, where available. Internal models are used when no market prices are available.

OTHER ASSETS
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Collateral assets 184,563 19,643
Other receivables 8,631 7,608
Deposit 812 824
Prepayments 1,071 997

195,077 29,072

Collateral assets represent cash collateral pledged to other banks and financial institutions for
derivative transactions.
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Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2020 2019

RM'0OCO RM'000
Computer Software
Cost
At 1 January/31 December 3,090 3,090
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2,180 1,283
Amortisation for the year 886 897
At 31 December 3,066 2,180
Net book value 24 a0

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the statement of
financial position:

2020 2019

RM'000 RM’000

Deferred Tax Assets 5,486 4,232
Deferred Tax Liabilities (2,070} (511)

At 31 December 3,416 3,721

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same tax
authority.
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Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

14. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
At Amortised Cost:
Demand deposits 1,409,123 827,347
Fixed deposits 886,190 811,390
Commodity Murabahah 5,507 -
2,300,820 1,838,737
(i) Maturity structure of fixed deposits and Commodity Murabahah are as follows:
2020 2019
RM000 RM'000
Due within six months 887,209 807,516
Six months to one year 4,488 3,874
891,697 811,390
i) The deposits are sourced from the following types of customers:
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Business enterprises 2,278,943 1,622,909
Non-bank financial institutions 21,877 15,828
2,300,820 1,638,737
15. DEPOSITS AND PLACEMENTS OF BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
At Amortised Cost:

Other financial institutions 840,883
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Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

OTHER LIABILITIES

2020
RM'000
Collateral deposits 1,151,905
Other payables 50,330
Accruals and charges 18,692

Allowance for impairment losses on loan commitment
and financial guarantee 692
Lease liabilities 4,913
1,226,532

320,753
53,075
16,150

2,144
7,428

399,550

Collateral deposits represent cash collateral pledged from other banks and financial institutions for

derivative transactions.

i) Allowance for impairment losses on loans commitment and financial guarantee are as
follows:
12  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
month not credit credit
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000
2020
Balance at beginning of
financial year 244 1,800 - 2144
Allowance written-back during
the financial year (50) {1,402) - {1,452)
Balance at end of
financial year 194 498 - 692
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Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

OTHER LIABILITIES {(CONTINUED)

i) Allowance for impairment losses on loans commitment and financial guarantee are as
follows: (continued)

12 Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

month not credit credit
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
2019
Balance at beginning of
financial year 86 332 - 418
Change in credit risk (45) 45 - -
Allowance made
during the financial year 202 1,401 - 1,603
Exchange differences 1 122 - 123
Balance at end of
financial year 244 1,900 - 2,144
SHARE CAPITAL
2020 2019
No of Ordinary Shares RM  No of Ordinary Shares RM
000 ‘000 '000 ‘000
Ordinary shares issued
and fully paid
At 31 Decermnber 650,000 650,000 650,000 650,000
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Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorparated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RESERVES

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000

Non-distributable:

Revaluation reserve-financial investments at

FVOCI {(Note a) 6,554 1,618
Regulatory reserve (Note b) - 9,584
6,554 11,202

(a) Revaluation reserve-financial investments at FVOCI

The revaluation reserve-financial investments at FVOCI represent cumulative fair value
changes on financial investments at FVOCI.

(b) Regulatory reserve

BNM Guidelines on Financial Reporting/Financial Reporting for Islamic Banking Institutions
requires banking institutions to maintain in aggregate, loss allowance for non credit-impaired
exposures and regulatory reserve of no less than 1% of total credit exposures, net of loss
allowance for credit-impaired exposures.

In 2020, the regulatory reserve held against expected losses is reduced to 0%, a COVID-19
related measure to drawdown prudential buffers as permitted by BNM.

DIVIDEND
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
An interim single tier dividend of RM0.10 per ordinary share on
650,000,000 ordinary shares paid on 5 September 2019 - 65,000

The Directors do not recommend and declared any dividend payment in respect of the current
financial year.
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

INTEREST INCOME

Loans and advances

Money at call and deposit placements with
financial institutions

Financial investments at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

Reverse repurchase agreements

Other interest income

Amortisation of premium less accretion of discount

INTEREST EXPENSE

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions

Repurchase agreements

Lease liabilities

Other interest expense

64

2020
RM'000

41,049

31,650
40,012
25,543
16,719

1,611

156,584

(7,748)

148,836

2020
RM’000

23,331

2,040
493
174

5,140

31,178

2019
RM'000

45,868

49,293
33,580
36,434
18,040

1

183,216

(3,114)

180,102

2019
RM000

39,610
31,296

279
370

71,558
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Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2020 2019
RWM'000 RM'000
Fee income:

Commissions 142 259

Guarantee fee 1,686 1,675
Other fee income;

Advisory fees - 14,381

Arrangement fees 797 639

Other fees 2,145 2,923

4,770 19,877
Gain arising from sale of:

Financial assets at FVTPL 24,0086 37,663

Financial investments at FVOCI 9,560 1,129
(Loss)/gain on derivatives trading:

Realised (59,818) (14,195)

Unrealised 125,715 62,053
Unrealised loss on revaluation of financial assets:

FVTPL {222) {2,315)
Unrealised gain on reverse repurchase agreements 387 -
Unrealised loss on repurchase agreements {330) -
Other income:

Foreign exchange:

Realised {loss)/gain (55,388) 35,602

Unrealised gain/(loss) 44,310 (69,141)
Others 9,706 10,838
102,786 81,511
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel costs (Note a)

Establishment costs (Note b)

Marketing expenses (Note ¢)

Administration and general expenses {Note d)

(2) Personnel costs

Salaries, bonuses and allowance
Defined contribution plan

Sacial security cost

Other staff related expenses

{b) Establishment costs

Information technology costs

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 12)

Amortisation of intangible asset {Note 13)

Others
{c) Marketing expenses
Advertising
Others
{d) Administration and general expenses

Legal and professional fees
Communication and transportation
Other general expenses

66

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
48,826 44,519
16,242 14,856
367 781
39,682 42,665
105,117 102,821
36,865 32,673
5,738 4,775
340 721
5,883 6,350
48,826 44,519
9,088 7,413
2,575 3,176
886 897
3,693 3,370
16,242 14,856
70 69

297 712
367 781
2,460 2,575
950 1,240
36,272 38,850
30,682 42,665
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorpeorated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

Included In the above expenditure are the following statutory disclosures:

2020 2019

RM'000 RM’000

Directors’ remuneration 1,393 1,523
Auditors' remuneration:

Statutory audit 380 411

Others 185 37

Details of Directors’ remuneration of the Bank during the year are as follows:

Other Benefits
Fees allowances Bonuses in kind Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM000
2020
Non-executive Directors 1,393 - - - 1,393
2019

Non-executive Directors 1,523 - - - 1,523

The details of the Directors of the Bank in office, and interest in shares and share options during the
financial year are disclosed in the Report of the Directors.

Aggregate remuneration of the CEO and all Directors during the financial year is as follows:

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Chief Executive Officer
Philippe Aroyo - 2,063
Anthony Lo 2,250 577
2,250 2,640
Non-Executive Directors
Dato Abdullah Mat Noh 400 400
Halim Haji Din 100 400
Jean-Pierre Roger Beno Bernard 170 170
Yves Maurice Guy Marie Drieux 170 170
Wahid Ali bin Mohd Khalil 170 170
Chia Seng Leng 170 170
Vijayam a/p Nadarajah 170 43
Faisal bin Ismail 43 -
Joris Maria A, Dierckx - -
3,643 4,163
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Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES

Expected credit losses:
Allowance (written back)made during the financial year

(Written back)/Charge during the financial year:

Loans, advances and financing
Other financial assets

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax:
Current year
Under provision in prior years

Deferred tax (Note 13)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Recognition and reversal of prior years’ temporary
differences

Income tax expenses

68

2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
(2,563) 6,163
(1,031) 4,508
(1,632) 1,655
(2,563) 6,163
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
30,071 20,641
176 1,186
30,247 21,827

(1,339) (715)
85 276

(1,254) (439)
28,993 21,388
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Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

A numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to profit before tax at the applicable statutory income

tax rate is as follows:

2020 2019

RM'000 RM’000

Profit before tax 118,234 81,495

Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% 28,376 19,559
Tax effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 356 367

Under provision in prior years 176 1,186

Recognition and reversal of prior years' temporary differences 85 276

28,993 21,388

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of BNP Paribas S.A., a financial institution incorporated in
France, which is also regarded by the Directors as the immediate and ultimate holding company of
the Bank.

The related parties and their relationship with the Bank, are as follows:

Name of related parties

BNP Paribas S.A., Paris

BNP Paribas, Dcha

BNFP Paribas, Tokyo

BNP Paribas, Canada

BNP Paribas, New York

BNP Paribas, Hong Kong

BNP Paribas, London

BNP Paribas, Abu Dhabi

BNP Paribas, Singapore

BNP Paribas, Geneva

BNP Paribas, Mumbai

BNP Paribas, Fortis

BNP Paribas, Labuan

BNP Paribas Asset Management Malaysia Sdn Bhd
BNP Paribas Asset Management Najmah Malaysia Sdn Bhd
BNP Paribas Capital {Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

69

Relationshi

Ultimate holding company

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary



Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(a) Related party transactions

Significant transactions undertaken by the Bank with related companies which are determined
on a basis negotiated with the said parties are as follows:

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Income:
Recharges from intercompany 5913 6,867
Interest on cash and short term funds - 118
Other interest 8 1
Fee Income 500 109
Gain on derivatives trading 128,842 -
Expense:
Interest on deposits and placements of banks
and other financial institutions 1,527 8,089
Other intercompany charges 33,896 34,002
Loss on derivatives trading - 5,581
Information technology costs 9,664 2,102
Other staff related expenses 50 184
Interest on Commodity Murabahah deposits 57 117
Interest on demand deposits 31 47
Interest on fixed deposits 128 117
Other interest 2,755 370
Other operating expenses 276 331
(b) Related party balances
Ultimate
holding Related
company parties
RM'000 RM'000
2020
Assets
Cash and short term funds 3,890 3,804
Derivative financial assets 563,018 44,682
Other assets - 1
566,908 48,487
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Related party balances {continued)

2020 {continued)
Liabilities

Deposits from customers

Deposit and placements of banks and other

financial institutions
Repurchase agreement
Derivative financial liahilities
Other liabilities

]

01

[is]

Assets

Cash and short term funds
Derivative financial assets
Other assets

[

19

Liabilities

Deposits from customers

Deposit and placemsnts of banks and other

financial institutions
Derivative financial liabilities
Other liabilities

71

Ultimate
holding Related
company parties
RM'000 RM'000
- 25,123
24,245 816,638
285,353 -
184,407 23,174
995,160 15
1,489,165 864,950
379 13,598
92,350 55,732
- 6,611
92,729 75,941
- 25,215
2,938 936,675
109,191 8,280
227,166 8,966
339,205 979,136




26.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Bank, either directly or indirectly. The key
management personnel of the Bank include the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Officers of the
Bank.

Compensation of key management personnel:

The remuneration of key management personnel during the year are as follows:

2020 2019

RM'000 RM'000

Salaries and other short term employee benefits 9,921 11,481
Post-employment benefits:

Defined contribution plan 1,008 1,132

10,929 12,613
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Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises which are classified as operating
lease as at 31 December 2018. Starting 1 January 2019, the Bank has recognised right of use assets
for these leases, except for leases which are scoped out of MFRS 16. A summary of the lease
commitments, net of sub-lease is as follows:

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000

Future minimum rental payments:
Not later than 1 year 384 343
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 563 303
947 646

CREDIT TRANSACTIONS AND EXPOSURES WITH CONNECTED PARTIES

20290 2019

RM'000 RM'000

Qutstanding credit exposures with connected parties 104,327 144,797

Total credit exposures 2,773,228 2,443,669
Percentage of outstanding credit exposure to connected

parties as a proportion of total credit exposures 3.76% 5.93%

Percentage of outstanding credit exposures with
connected parties which is non-performing or in default - -
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201001034168 {918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes various commitments and incurs certain contingent
liabilities with legal recourse to its customers. No material losses are anticipated as a result of these
transactions. The commitments and contingencies are not secured against the Bank's assets.

The principal amount of the commitment and contingencies as of 31 December are as follows:

Direct credit substitutes

Short term self liquidating trade related
contingencies

Irrevocable commitments to extend credit:
Maturity up to one year
Maturity more than one year

Total credit related commitment and contingencies

Foreign exchange derivatives:
One year or less
Over one year to five years
Over five years

Interest rate derivatives:
One year or less
Over one year to five years
Over five years

Credit derivatives:
One year or less
Over one year to five years

Total treasury related commitment and contingencies

Total commitment and contingencies

76

2020 2019
Principal Principal
amount amount
RM’000 RM'000
375,527 387,830
6,904 1,006
353,470 261,504
735,901 650,340
48,467,361 54,493,027
2,161,244 1,157,092
17,000 -
13,308,092 10,016,250
31,127,563 21,849,881
1,459,071 1,113,118
290,264 78,229
620,940 994,711
97,451,635 89,702,308
98,187,436 90,352,648
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Bank has developed and implemented comprehensive policies and procedures to identify,
mitigate and monitor risk across the entity which are based on BNP Paribas Group's policies. These
practices rely on constant communications, judgement and knowledge of products and markets by the
people closest to them, combined with regular oversight by a central risk management group and
senior management.

(a)

QOperational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of incurring a loss due to inadequate or failed internal processes,
or due to external events, whether deliberate, accidental or natural occurrences. Management
of operational risk is based on an analysis of the “cause — event — effect” chain.

Internal processes giving rise to operational risk may involve employees and/or IT systems,
External events include, but are not limited to floods, fire, earthquakes and terrorist attacks.
Credit or market events such as default or fluctuations in value do not fall within the scope of
operational risk.

QOperational risk encompasses human resources risks, legal risks, tax risks, information
system risks, misprocessing risks, Shariah non-compliance risks, risks related to published
financial information and the financial implications resulting from reputation and compliance
risks.

The Bank has implemented an Internal Operational Risk Self Assessment system, identifying
areas and probability of risk. The actual occurrence of operational loss is entered into a
Corporate Loss Database and reconciled against the financial statements. The Bank also has
the Operational Risk Assessment Process and a Business Continuity Plan in place.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential that a bank borrower or counterparty will fail to meet its obligations
in accordance with agreed terms. The probability of default and the expected recovery on the
loan or receivable in the event of default are key components of the credit quality assessment.

Counterparty risk is the credit risk embedded in payment or transactions between
counterparties. Those transactions include bilateral contracts such as over-the-counter
derivatives contracts (‘OTC'). The amount of this risk varies over time in line with changing
market parameters which then impacts the replacement value of the relevant transactions or
portfolio.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit Risk (continued)

General credit policy, credit control and provisioning procedures

The Bank’s lending activities are governed by the Bank’s Credit Risk Policy which is subject
to and fully adopts BNP Paribas Group’s Global Credit Policy. The policy is underpinned by
core principles related to compliance with the BNP Paribas Group's ethical standards, clear
definition of roles and responsibilities and thorough analysis of risks. It is rolled down in the
form of specific policies tailored to each type of business or counterparty.

In respect of its lending activities, the Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by
setting limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or groups of
borrowers, and would abide by geographical and industry segments limit as and when defined
at Group or Regional level.

A comprehensive risk monitoring system is organised around Control units, which are
responsible for ensuring that lending commitments comply with the loan approval decision,
that credit risk reporting data are reliable and that risks accepted by the Bank are effectively
monitored. Daily exception reports are produced and various forecasting tools are used to
provide early warnings of potential escalations of credit risks. The various monitoring |levels,
which generally reflect the organisation of discretionary lending authorities, are carried out up
to the General Management Doubtful and Watch List Committee, under the supervision of
Risk Function ('RISK'). This commitiee examines on a quarterly basis all sensitive or non-
performing loans in excess of a given threshold, for which it reviews and decides on the
strategy towards the client, the rating and Global Recovery Rate (‘GRR') and examines the
adequacy of the impairment and recovery data based on a recommendation from the business
lines, with RISK concurrence,

As part of the BNP Paribas Group's policy, each business line is required to make a monthly
review, together with RISK, of all corporate, bank and sovereign loans in default to determine
the amount of impairment loss, if any, to be recognised, either by reducing the carrying amount
or by recording a provision for impairment, depending on the applicable accounting standards.
The amount of the impairment loss is based on the present value of expected net recoveries,
including from the realisation of collateral. Each and every change in provision must be
examined locally by a committee between Business, Finance and Risk by physical meetings.
Changes in provision exceeding local/regional delegation level are recommended to Head
Office.

In addition, at APAC level, a collective impairment is established while a dedicated local
management committee is also established to provide the necessary oversight.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit Risk {continued)

General credit policy, credit control and provisioning procedures {continued)

The determination of this collective impairment, known as MFRS 9 provisions, is calculated
on all facilities and results from a two-step approach.

First the facilities have to be allocated to one of the three impairment stages by determining
whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether
the facility is defaulted. If that increase did occur, the facility is considered as being in Stage
2. If there was no significant credit risk increase, the facility remains in stage 1.

Second, the collective provisioning of the facility, known as the expected credit loss is
calculated: 12-month expected loss for all facilities in stage 1 and lifetime expected credit loss
for all facilities in stage 2; facilities in stage 3 are covered by specific provisions.

Internal rating system

The Bank adopts the BNP Paribas Group’s Corporate Credit Policy which formalises the rating
principles and methodology to be used to qualify and quantify the credit risks of counterparty.
The implementation of this policy contributes to the management, approval and monitoring,
credit delegation, provisioning and pricing policy process and portfolio management of
corporate credit risks within the Bank at counterparty level.

The BNP Paribas Group performs regular back-testing to ensure that the rating system is
appropriate and robust.

Under the rating system, there are 32 notches. 30 (ranging from 1+ to 10-) cover
counterparties that are not in default with credit assessments ranging from ‘excellent’ to ‘very
concerning’, and two relate to counterparties classified as in Doubtful. Confirmation or
amendmenis to Counterparty Ratings and the Global Recovery Rates applicable to each
transaction of the counterparty are reviewed at inception and at least once a year as part of
the credit approval process or annual credit review, drawing on the combined expertise of
business line staff and Risk representatives, who have the final say. High quality tools have
been developed to support the rating process, including analysis aids and credit scoring
systems.

Portfolio policy

In addition to selecting individual risks and measuring the related exposure, the Bank follows
a portfolio-based policy designed to diversify risks among borrowers and industries with a
cautious approach to country risk. Concentrations of counterparty risks are closely monitored
at regular intervals.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit Risk {continued)

Risk mitigation techniques

Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral or right to call for
collateral when certain exposure thresholds are exceeded, the right to terminate transactions
upon the occurrence of unfavourable events, the right to reset the terms of transactions after
specified time periods or upon the occurrence of unfavourable events, reducing part of its risks
through risk participations and securitisation and entering into netting agreements with
counterparties that permit the Bank to offset receivables and payables with such
counterparties.

Where possible, the Bank takes collateral to mitigate its exposure, Collateral includes cash,
marketable securities, structured products, moveable and immovable properties, trade
receivables, inventory and other physical and financial collateral. The Bank may also take
fixed and floating charges on the assets of borrowers. It has put in place policies governing
eligibility of collateral. Where appropriate, collaterals are revalued pericdically depending on
the type of collaterals in order to ensure continued effective coverage.

The Bank generally holds full collaterals against the credit facilities granted under its wealth
management businesses and holds the right to dispose of these collaterals when certain
exposure thresholds are exceeded. Mortgage loan is usually extended to customers who
maintain their liquidity with the Bank and represent an immaterial proportion of the total loan
portfolio of the Bank.

Netting arrangements

Netting is used by the Bank in order to mitigate counterparty credit risk associated with
derivatives trading. The main instance where netting occurs is in case of trades termination: if
the counterparty defaults, all the trades are terminated at their current market value, and all
the positive and negative market values are summed to obtain a single amount (net) to be
paid to or received from the counterparty. The balance (‘close-out netting) may be
collateralised with cash, securities or deposits,

The Bank also applies settlement netting in order to mitigate counterparty credit risk in case
of currency-settlements. This corresponds to the netting of all payments and receipts between
the Bank and one counterparty in the same currency to be settled in the same day. The netting
results in a single amount (for each currency) to be paid either by the Bank or by the
counterparty.

Transactions affected by this are processed in accordance with bilateral or multilateral
agreements respecting the general principles of the national or international framework. The
main forms of bilateral agreements are those issued on an international basis by International
Swaps and Derivatives Association (‘ISDA).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit Risk {continued)

Derivatives

This credit risk exposure is managed at BNP Paribas Group level as part of the overall credit
limits with customers, fogether with potential exposures from market movements. Collateral
or other security may be obtained to mitigate credit risk exposures on these instruments.

Measurement of Expected Credit Loss for capital purposes

The key inputs used for measuring ECL are prabability of default ('PD"), loss given default
(‘LGD’} exposure at default ('EAD’) and effective maturity.

These figures are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and other
historical data and they are adjusted to reflect probability-weighted forward-locking
information.

PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. It is estimated as at a
point in time. The calculation is based on statistical rating models, and assessed using rating
tools tailored to the various categories of counterparties and exposures. These statistical
models are based on market data (where available), as well as internal data comprising both
quantitative and qualitative factors. PDs are estimated considering the contractual maturities
of exposures and estimated prepayment rates. The estimation is based on current conditions,
adjusted to take into account estimates of future conditions that will impact PD.

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into
account cash flows from any collateral. The LGD models for secured assets consider forecasts
of future collateral valuation taking into account sale discounts, time to realisation of collateral,
cross-collateralisation and seniority of claim, cost of realisation of collateral and cure rates (i.e.
exit from non-performing status). LGD models for unsecured assets consider time of recavery,
recovery rates and seniority of claims. The calculation is on a discounted cash flow basis,
where the cash flows are discounted by the original EIR of the loan.

EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected
changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and
interest, and expected drawdowns on committed facilities. The Bank's modelling approach for
EAD reflects expected changes in the balance outstanding over the lifetime of the loan
exposure that are permitted by the current contractual terms, such as amortisation profiles,
early repayment or overpayment, changes in utilisation of undrawn commitments and credit
mitigation actions taken before default. The Bank uses EAD models that reflect the
characteristics of the portfolios.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit Risk (continued)

Measurement of Expected Credit Loss for capital purposes {continued)
The effective maturity is the expected date when the contract with the counterparty expires.

The Bank measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period
(including extension options) over which the entity is exposed to credit risk and not a longer
period, even if contact extension or renewal is common business practice. However, for
financial instruments such as revolving credit facilities and overdraft facilities that include both
a loan and an undrawn commitment component, the Bank's contractual ability to demand
repayment and cancel the undrawn commitment does not limit the Bank's exposure to credit
losses to the contractual notice period. For such financial instruments the Bank measures ECL
over the period that it is exposed to credit risk and ECL would not be mitigated by credit risk
management actions, even if that period extends beyond the maximum contractual period.
These financial instruments do not have a fixed term or repayment structure and have a short
contractual cancellation period.

The measurement of ECL is based on probability weighted average credit loss. As a result,
the measurement of the loss allowance should be the same regardless of whether it is
measured on an individual basis or a collective basis (although measurement on a collective
basis is more practical for large portfolios of items).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit Risk {continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
statement of financial position, including derivative financial instruments.

The maximum exposure is shown gross, without taking account of any collateral held or other
credit enhancements.

Note 2020 2019
RM000 RM'000

ASSETS
Cash and short-term funds 5 1,072,884 1,431,636

Reverse repurchase agreements 974,678 -
413,967 100,233

Financial assets at FVTPL 6

Financial investments at FVOCI 7 1,335,231 957,509
Loans, advances and financing® 8 1,343,303 1,195,658
Derivative financial assets 9 1,296,203 459,442
Other asset** 10 193,194 27,251
Total asset 6,629,550 4,171,729
Commitments and contingencies 1,429,925 1,248,012
Total credit exposure 8,059,475 5,419,741

* Excludes expected credit losses allowance amounting to RM 4,896,000 (2019. RM
5,771,000).

** Other assets exclude prepayment and refundable deposits amounting to RM 1,883,000
{2019: RM1,821,000)

Risk concentrations for commitments and contingencies are based on the credit equivalent
balances derived based on credit conversion factor as per Bank Negara Malaysia guidelines.

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value, the amounts shown above represent

the current credit risk exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the
future as a result of changes in values.
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Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T1)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Credit quality of financial assets

Financial assets are required under MFRS 7, to be categorised into ‘neither past due nor
impaired’, ‘past due but not impaired’ or ‘impaired'.

The table below compares, for indicative purpose only, BNP Paribas’ Rating Scale with the

rating agencies ‘Long Term Currency Issuer Credit Ratings' and 'Long Term Local Currency
Senior Unsecure Rating'.

Long-term Issuer/Unsecure issues ratings

BNP Paribas Ratings

Moody's S&P Fitch IBCA

1+ Excellent Aaa AAA AAA

1 Excellent Aal AA+ AA+

1- Excellent Aa2 AA AA

24 Very good Aa3 AA AA

A1 A+ A+

2 Very good A2 A A

2 Very good A3 A- A-

3+/3/3- Good Baal BBB+ BBB+

4-+/4/4- Ahove average Baa2 BEB BBB

5+/5/5- Average Baa3  BBB- BBB-

6+ Below average Ba1 BB+ BB+

6/6- Below average Ba2 BB BB

7+/7 Poor Ba3 BB- BB

7- Poor B1 B+ B+

8+/8/8- Weak B2 B B

9+/9/0- Speculative B3 B- B-

Caai CCC+ CCC+

10+ Substandard Caa2 cCcC CCC

Caa3 CCcC- CCC-

10 Substandard Ca CC CC

10- Substandard C C C
11 Default

12 Inversible default Sbib DDD/DD/D
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Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{b) Credit Risk (continued)

Credit quality of financial assets (continuad)

2020

ECL Staging

Stage 1 Stage2 Stage 3

12-month Lifetime  Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
RM'000 RM'O00  RM'000 RM'000
Cash and short-term funds 1,072,884 - - 1,072,884
1- 7,712 - - 7,712
2+ 2,016 - - 2,016
2 1,664 - - 1,664
2. 1,054,948 - - 1,054,948
3+ 816 - - 816
3 5713 - - 5713
4 15 - - 15
e repurchase 974,678 . . 974,678
2- 86,115 - - 86,115
3- 303,745 - - 303,745
4+ 314,293 - - 314,293
5+ 270,525 - - 270,625
Financial assets at FVTPL 413,967 N ) 413,967
2- 413,967 - - 413,967
Financial investments at 1.335.231 ) ) 1.335.231

FVQCI ! ’ , s

2- 1,335,231 - - 1,335,231
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Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Credit quality of financial assets (continued)

2020

ECL Staging

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month Lifetime  Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
RM'000 RM'000  RM'000 RM'000
;‘;g:iiﬁg},’a“"es’ and 1,240,718 102,585 . 1,343,303
3+ 19,769 - - 19,769
3 26,002 - . 26,002
3- 334,857 - - 334,857
4+ 155,332 - - 155,332
4 90,421 - - 90,421
5+ 123,472 - - 123,472
5 13,986 - - 13,986
5- 65,265 - - 65,265
6+ 202,564 - - 202,564
6 53,224 - - 53,224
6- 1,001 - - 1,001
7+ 57,753 92,593 - 150,346
7 40,505 - - 40,505
7- 37,497 - - 37,497
8+ 12,507 - - 12,507
8 6,563 - - 6,563
8- - 9,390 - 9,390
g - 602 - 602

20



Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Credit quality of financial assets (continued)

2020

ECL Staging

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month Lifetime  Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM00O0
Derivative financial assets 1,296,293 - - 1,296,293
7- 607,700 - - 607,700
2- 5,170 - - 5,170
3+ 186,183 - - 186,163
3 33,202 - - 33,202
3- 69,500 - - 69,500
4+ 117,347 - - 117,347
4 30,467 - - 30,467
4- 20,215 - - 20,215
5+ 51,773 - - 51,773
5 157,033 - - 157,033
5- 11 - - 11
6+ 2,955 - - 2,955
6- 529 - - 529
7+ 49 - - 49
7 1,063 - - 1,063
Unrated 13,096 - - 13,096
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Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{b) Credit Risk (continued)

Credit guality of financial assets (continued)

2020

ECL Staging

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month Lifetime  Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'Q00 RM'000
Other asset 193,194 - - 193,194
1- 1 - - 1
3+ 4,460 - - 4,460
3 8,789 - - 9,789
3- 37,610 - - 37,610
4+ 27,752 - - 27,752
4 68,260 - - 68,260
5+ 37,293 - - 37,293
5- 25 - - 25
Unrated 8,604 - - 8,604
Gross carrying amount 6,526,965 102,585 - 6,629,550
Less: ECL (2,310) (2,586) - {4,8986)
Net carrying amount 6,524,655 99,999 - 6,624,654
* Excludes expected credit losses amounting to RM 4,896,000 (2019: RM35,771,000).

*k

Other assets exclude prepayment and refundable deposits amounting to RM
1,883,000 {2019: RM1,821,000)

Financial effects of collaterals

Collateral is generally taken as security for credit exposures as a secondary source of
repayment in case the counterparty cannot meet its contractual repayment obligations from
cash flow generation. Types of collateral typically taken by the Bank includes

. Cash and Margin Deposits
. Land and building

The Bank also accepts non-tangible securities as support, such as guarantees from
corperates and institutions, central banks and general governments in a form of assignments
of contract proceeds andfor promissory notes.

Overall, there do not appear to be a significant deterioration in the quality of collateral.
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Registration No.
201001034166 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Credit quality of financial assets {continued)

2019

ECL Staging

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Cash and short-term funds 1,431,636 - - 1,431,636
1- 13,986 - - 13,986
2+ 5,471 - - 5471
2 776 - - 776
o2- 1,408,883 - - 1,408,883
3+ 804 - - 804
3 1,712 - - 1,712
4 4 - - 4
Financial assets at FVTPL 100,233 - - 100,233
2. 100,233 - - 100,233

Financial investment at

FVOCI 957,509 - - 957,509
o 957,509 - - 957,509
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30.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Credit Risk (continued)

Credit quality of financial assets {continued)

Loans advances and
financing®

3-

4+

4

5+

5

5-

6+

6

6-

7+

7-

8+

8

8-

10

2019

ECL Staging

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-morith Lifetime  Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL
RM000 RM'000 RM'00C
1,061,318 134,340 -
243,210 - -
45,014 - -
40,059 - -
56,480 - -
151,199 - -
155,567 - -
6,278 - -
115,738 - -
79,198 - -
96,249 - -
48,850 53,347 -
16,412 - -
2,468 15,328 -
4,596 10,410 -

- 55,255 -

94

Total

RM'D00

1,195,658

243,210
45,014
40,059
56,480

151,199

155,567

6,278

115,738
79,198
96,249

102,197
16,412
17,796
15,006
55,255



30.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Credit quality of financial assets (continued)

2019

ECL Staging

Stage 1 Stage 2  Stage 3
12-month Lifetime  Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL

RM'000 RM'000  RM0Q0

Derivative financial assets 457,114 2,328 -
1- 152,205 - -
2- 1,139 - -
3+ 101,423 - -
3 21,885 - -
3- 62,472 - -
4+ 48,149 - -
4 3,832 - -
4- 7,569 - -
5+ 1,458 - -
5 42,116 - -
6+ 59 - -
6 924 - -
6- 571 - -
7+ 10,906 - -
8+ 184 - -
10 - 2,328 -
Unrated 2,222 - -

95

Total
RM000

459,442
152,205
1,139
101,423
21,885
62,472
48,149
3,832
7,569
1,458
42,116
59

924

571
10,906
184
2,328
2,222



30,

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{b) Credit Risk {continued)

Credit quality of financlal assets (continued)

2019

ECL Staging

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month Lifetime  Lifetime
ECL ECL. ECL Total
RM000 RM000  RM'000 RM'000
Other asset 27,251 . - 27,251
1- 25 - - 25
2- 3,397 - - 3,397
3 96 - - 96
3- 1,870 - - 1,970
4+ 3,806 - - 3,806
4- 8,970 - - 8,970
5+ 18 - - 18
5 1,500 - - 1,600
Unrated 7,469 - - 7,469
Gross carrying amount 4,035,061 136,668 - 4,171,729
Less: ECL (1,169) {(4,602) - (5,771)
Net carrying amount 4,033,892 132,066 - 4,165,958
* Excludes expected credit losses amounting fo RM5,771,000 (2018: RM 1,419,000).

*%

Other assets exclude prepayment and refundable deposits amounting to
RM1,821,000 (2018: RM1,998,000)
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Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Credit exposure by stage

Financial assets of the Bank are classified into three stages as below:

Stages Description

Stage 1: 12 months ECL - not credit | For credit exposures where there have not
impaired been significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and that are not credit
impaired upon crigination, the ECL
associated with the probability of default
events occurring within the next 12 months
will be recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired | For credit exposures where there have been
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but that are not credit impaired,
the ECL associated with the probability of
default events occurring within the lifetime
ECL will be recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit impaired Financial assets are assessed as credit
impaired when one or more objective
evidence of defaults that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset have occurred. For financial
assets that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL will be recognised.
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30.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit Risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Bank performed ECL sensitivity assessment on loans, advances and financing based on:

iy changes in % of GDP growth used for optimistic and adverse scenarios while all other
variables remain unchanged.

The table below outlines the effect on ECL with the changes in % of GDP growth used:

2020
Increase/(Decrease) in % Increase/{Decrease) in ECL
RM'000
Optimistic +15% (3.840)
Adverse -15% 7,471
i) changes in % of probability weightage used for optimist and adverse scenarios while

all other variables remain unchanged.

The table below outlines the effect on ECL with the changes in weightage used:

2020
Changes in weightage Increase in ECL
Scenarios
Adverse (%) Optimist (%) RM'000
1 + 5% - 5% 399
2 +10% -10% 719
3 +15% -15% 1,040

The above disclosure is intended to illustrate the relative sensitivity of the ECL allowance
caiculation and is not predictive or indicative of future loss experience.
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30.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of incurring a loss of value due to adverse trends in market prices or
parameters, whether directly observable or not.

Observable market parameters include, but are not limited to, exchange rates, interest rates,
prices of securities and commodities (whether listed or obtained by reference to a similar
asset), prices of derivatives, prices of other goods, and other parameters that can be directly
inferred from them, such as credit spreads, volatilities and implied correlations or other similar
parameiers,

Non-observable factors are those based on working assumptions such as parameters
contained in models or based on statistical or economic analysis, as confirmed by market
information.

Liquidity is an important component of market rigk. In times of limited or no liquidity,
instruments or goods may not be tradable or may not be tradable at their estimated value.
This may arise, for example, due to low transaction volumes, legal restrictions or a strong
imbalance between demand and supply for certain assets.

The Bank's primary tool for the systematic measuring and monitoring of market risk is the
Value at Risk ('VaR’} calculation, which is measured and monitored at the regional level by
lines of businesses. VaR is an estimate of the expected loss in the value of the various regional
lines of businesses’ activities, where the Bank’s activities are rolled up into, over a one-day
time horizon. VaR allows for a consistent and uniform measure of market risk across all
applicable products and activities. To calculate VaR, the Bank uses historical simulation, which
measures risk across instruments and portfolios in a consistent and comparable way. This
approach assumes that historical changes in market values are representative of future
changes. The simulation is based upon date for the previous twelve months.

Besides VaR, other non-statistical limits such as basis point value and net open positions are
used as market risk tools to limit the risk to which the businesses can be exposed to.
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30.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Market Risk {continued)

The VaR of the Bank at the end of the reporting period, based on one-day time horizon and
at 99% confidence level, is RM6,121,964 (2019: RM2,091,094). It represents the correlation
and consequent diversification effects between risk types and portfolio types across trading
and non-trading businesses. However, the use of this approach does not prevent losses
outside of these limits in the event of more significant market movements.

2020 2019
RM mil RM'mil
Aggregate VaR 6.1 2.1

The aggregate VaR includes the diversification effect of imperfect or negative correlations
between certain risk types. Therefore the aggregate VaR can be lower than the sum of
individual risk types on the same day (e.g. year end).

The maximum VaR of the Bank during the year is RM9,414,732 (2019: RM5,004,858) while
the minimum VaR during the year is RM1,928,770 (2019: RM1,407,203).

In practice, the actual trading results will differ from the VaR calculation and, in particular, the
calculation does not provide a meaningful indication of profit or loss in stressed market
conditions. To determine the reliability of the VaR models, actual outcomes are monitored
regularly to test the validity of the assumptions and the parameters used in the VaR
calculation.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the potential change in interest rate levels including changes in interest
rate differentials that arises mainly from the differing yields and maturity profiles between
assets and liahilities.

Interest rate is monitored through the market risk management systems as part of the overall
market risk management of the Bank. The following tables represents the Bank’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity
dates as at the end of the reporting period.
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30.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Interest Rate Risk (continued)
Sensitivity of profit

The table below shows the sensitivity of the Bank’s banking book to movement in interest
rates:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Increase/(Decrease) increase/{Decrease)
+100 basis  -100 basis +100 basis  -100 basis
point point point point
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
Impact to profit (after tax) (1,992) 1,992 3,325 (3,325)

Sensitivity is measured using the EaR methodology. The treatments and assumptions
applied are based on the contractual repricing and remaining maturity of the products,
whichever is earlier. ltems with indefinite repricing maturity are treated based on the earliest
possible repricing date. The actual dates may vary from the repricing profile allocated due
to factors such as pre-mature withdrawals, prepayment and others.

A 100 bps paralle! rate movement is applied to the yield curve to model the potential impact
on profit in the next 12 months from policy rate change.

The projection assumes that interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount and,
therefore, do not reflect the potential impact on profit of some rates changing while others
remain unchanged. The projections also assume that all other variables are held constant
and are based on a constant reporting date position and that all positions run to maturity.
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30.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Interest Rate Risk {continued)
Sensitivity of reserves

The table below shows the sensitivity of the Bank's banking book to movement in interest
rates:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Increase/{Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
+100 basis  -100 basis +100 basis  -100 basis
point point point point
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Impact to revaluation reserve-
financial investments
through other
comprehensive income (22,073) 22,073 (10,795) 10,795

A 100 bps parallel rate movement is applied to the yield curve to model the potential impact
on reserve in the next 12 months from changes in risk free rates. The impact on reserves
arises from changes in valuation of financial investments available-for-sale following
movements in risk free rates.

The projection assumes that all other variables are held constant. It alsc assumes a constant
reporting date position and that all positions run to maturity.

The above sensitivities of profit and reserves do not take inte account the effects of hedging
and do not incorporate actions that the Bank would take to mitigate the impact of this interest
rate risk, In practice, the Bank proactively seeks to mitigate the effect of prospective interest
movements.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its cash flow obligations as they fall
due, such as upon the maturity of deposits and loan drawdowns.

The Assets and Liabilities Committee ('ALCO’) is primarily responsible for the strategic
management of the Bank’s liquidity, the daily operations of which are carried out by the ALM
Desk of the Treasury Department.

ALCO monitors at its monthly meeting, adherence to the liquidity and mismatch limits, and
compliance with BNP Paribas Group worldwide, ALCO guidelines and Bank Negara
Malaysia’s Liquidity Coverage Ratio.

The table below analyses the Bank's non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity

groupings based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.
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30.

Registration No.

201001034168 {918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

Financial assets have been reflected in the time band of the latest date on which they could
be repaid, unless earlier repayment can be demanded by the Bank. Financial liabilities are
included at the earliest date on which the counterparty can require repayment regardtess of
whether or not such early repayment results in a penalty. if the repayment of a financial asset
or liability is triggered by, or is subject to, specific criteria, such as market price hurdles being
reached, the asset is included in the latest date on which it can be repaid regardiess of early
repayment, the liability is included at the earliest possible date that the conditions can be
fulfilled without considering the probability of the conditions being met.

The contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities highlight the maturity
transformation which underpins the role of banks to lend longer-term but funded predominantly
by short-term liabilities such as customer deposits.

Customer assets and liabilities (including non-maturing savings/current deposits) are
represented on contractual basis or period when it can legally be withdrawn. On a behavioural
basis, the asseis and liabilities cash flows may differ from contractual basis.

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk to earnings and value of financial instruments caused by the
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. It is managed in conjunction with market risk.

The table below sets out the Bank's exposure to currency risk. Included in the table are the
Bank’s financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by currency.
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30,

Registration No.

201001034168 (218091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {(CONTINUED)

{f) Currency Risk (continued)

The table below shows the sensitivity of the Bank’s profit to movement in foreign exchange rates:

31 December 31 December
2020 20189
(Decrease)Increase {Decrease)/increase
1% depreciation 1% depreciation
1% appreciation in in foreign 1% appreciation in in foreign
foreign currency currency foreign currency currency
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'OG0
Impact to profit
{after tax) {15,951) 15,951 {10,869) 10,882

The impact on profit arises from transactional exposures. The projection assumes that foreign
exchange rates move by the same amount and, therefore, do not reflect the potential impact on
profit and reserves of some rates changing while others remain unchanged. The projections also
assume that all other variables are held constant and are based on a constant reporting date position
and that all positions run tc maturity.
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30.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorparated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The following financial assets and liabilities are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
agreements and similar agreements:

Related amount not set off in the
statement of financial position

Gross
amount of
recognised
financial
assets/
financial Financial Financial Net
liabilities instrument collateral amount
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2020
Assets
Derivative financial assets 1,296,293 (666,166) (184,563) 445,564
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities 1,111,173 (666,166) {1,151,905) {706,898)
2019
Assets
Derivative financial assets 459,442 (266,740) (19,643) 173,059
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities 431,077 (266,740) (320,753) (1566,4186)
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31.

Registration No.

201001034168 {918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial instruments comprise financial assets, financial liabilities and off-balance sheet financial
instruments. Fair value is the amount at which the financial asset could be exchanged or a financial
liability could be settled, between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm's length transaction.
The information presented herein represents the best estimates of fair values as at the end of the
reporting period.

Where available, quoted and observable market prices are used as the measure of fair values.
Where such quoted and observable market prices are not available, fair values are estimated based
on appropriate methodologies and assumptions on risk characteristics of various financial
instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows and other factors. Changes in the
uncertainties and assumptions could materially affect these estimates and the resulting fair value
estimates.

MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement requires each class of assets and liabilities measured at fair
value in the statement of financial position after initial recognition to be categorised according to a
hierarchy that reflects the significance of inputs used in making the measurements, in particular,
whether the inputs used are observable or unobservable. The following levels of hierarchy are used
for determining and disclosing the fair value of those financial instruments and non-financial assets:

. Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
characteristics of an active market include the existence of a sufficient frequency and
volume of activity and of readily available prices;

. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liabllity either directly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (ie. derived from prices); these
techniques are regularly calibrated and the inputs are corroborated with information from
active markets; and

. Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs). An unobservable input is a parameter for which there are no market
data available and that is therefore derived from proprietary assumptions about what other
market participants would consider when assessing fair value.

For financial instruments disclosed in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a difference
between the transaction price and the fair value may arise at initial recognition. This 'Day
One Profit' is deferred and released to the profit and loss account over the period during
which the valuation parameters are expected to remain non-observable. When parameters
that were originally non-observable become observable, or when the valuation can be
substantiated in comparison with recent similar transactions in an active market, the
unrecognised portion of the day one profit is released to profit or loss account.
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31.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of movements in Level 3 financial instruments

2020 2019
RM'O00 RM'000
Derivative Financial Assets
At 1 January 30,796 61,266
Gain recognised in profil or loss
Realised (9,372) (10,884)
Unrealised 8,312 (19,586)
29,736 30,796
At 31 December —
Derivative Financial L.iabilities
At 1 January 9,321 35,424
Loss recognised in profit or loss
Realised {1,785) (35,424)
Unrealised 10,771 9,321
At 31 December 18,307 9,321

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction under normal market conditions.

However, for certain assets such as loans, deposits and derivatives, fair values are not readily
available as there is no epen market where these instruments are traded.

The fair values for these instruments are estimated based on the assumptions and techniques
below.

These methods are subjective in nature and therefore the fair values presented may not be indicative
of the actual realisable value.

(i) Cash and short-term funds

The carrying amounts are a reasonahle estimate of the fair values because of their short-
term nature.

i) Reverse repurchase agreements
The estimated fair value is based on quoted and observable market prices at the end of the

reporting period. Where such quoted and observable market prices are not available, fair
value is estimated using pricing models or discounted cash flows techniques.
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31,

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial assets through profit and loss and through other comprehensive income

The estimated fair value is based on quoted and observable market prices at the end of the
reporting period. Where such quoted and observable market prices are not available, fair
value is estimated using pricing models or discounted cash flows techiniques. Where
discounted cash flows technique is used, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
based on current market rates for similar instruments at the end of the reporting period.
Loans, advances and financing

The fair values of fixed rate loans with remaining maturity of less than one year and variable
rate loans are estimated to approximate their carrying values.

For fixed rate loans with maturities of more than one year, the fair values are estimated
based on discounted future cash flows of contraciual instalment payments.

For variable rate loans with maturities of more than one year, the fair values have been
determined with generally pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis with the
maost significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects lhe credit risk of counterparties.

In respect of credit-impaired loans, the fair values are deemed to approximate the carrying
values, net of individual impairment allowance for bad and doubtful debts and financing.

Deposits from customers

Deposits from customers are valued at carrying amounts for all amounts on demand and
below one year, while deposits over one year have been valued at discounted cash flows.

Deposits and placements from banks and other financial institutions

Deposits and placements from banks and other financial institutions are valued at carrying
amount.

Derivative financial instruments
The fair value of foreign exchange derivatives, interest rate derivatives and equity

derivatives is the estimated amount that the Bank would receive or pay to terminate the
contracts at the end of the reporting period.
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32.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The components of Tier | and Tier |l capital are as follows:

Tier 1 capital
Pzaid-up share capital

Retained profiis
Other disclosed reserves

Less: Regulatory adjiusiments
Intangible assels

Deferred tax assets
55% of cumulative gains from financial instruments at FVOCH

Total Tier 1 capital

Tier 2 capital

Expected credit losses
Regulatory reserve

Total Tier 2 capital

Total Capital base

Capital Ratios
Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio

Tier 1 Capital Ratio
Total Capital Ratio

125

2020
RM'000

650,000
223,911
6,554

880,465
(24)

(3,416)
(2,605)

873,420

5,688

5,588

879,008

18.905%
18.905%

19.026%

650,000
125,086
1,618

776,704
(S10)

(3,721)
(§50)

771,183

7,915
9,584

17,499

788,682

18.685%
18.685%

19.109%



32.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

The breakdown of risk-weighted assets by each major risk category is as follows:

Risk weight
0%

20%

50%

100%

Credit risk
Markef risk
Operational risk

Total risk-weighted assets

2020 2019

Risk Risk

weighted weighted

Principal assets Principal assets
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
3,917,160 - 2,366,393 -
760,182 152,036 617,318 123,464
146,818 73,409 25,414 12,707
2,121,614 2,121,614 1,890,217 1,890,217
2,347,059 2,026,388

1,868,985 1,657,388

403,981 443,555

4,620,025 4,127,331
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Registration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW

The Bank launched ifs Islamic banking business under its Islamic Banking Window on @ April 2012.
The financial position of the Islamic Banking Window of the Bank as at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
and results for the financial year ended on the dates are summarised as follows:

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Note 2020 2019
RID00 RM000
ASSETS
Cash and short-term funds {a) 22,202 29,079
Other assets (b) 9,766 9,668
Property, plant and equipment (c) - -
Intangible assets {d) - -
TOTALASSETS 31,968 38,747
LIABILITIES AND ISLAMIC BANKING FUNDS
Deposits from customers (e) 10,079 16,312
Other liabilities 82 152
TOTAL LIABILITIES 10,161 16,464
Capital fund 26,850 26,850
Accumulated losses (5,043) (4,567)
Islamic banking funds 21,807 22,283
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND ISLAMIC
BANKING FUNDS 31,968 38,747

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - -
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33.

Registration Ne.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Income derived from investment of [slamic
banking funds and depositors’ funds
Profit expense to depositors

Net income derived from investment of
Islamic banking funds and depositors’ funds

Other operating income
Other operating expenses

Loss before taxation
Income tax expense

Loss after taxation

Total comprehensive expense

128

Note

(f)

()

2020

RM000

401
(57)

344

1,038
(1,858)

{476)

(476)

(476)

2019

RM'000

716
(293)

423

1,027
(1,880)

(430)

{430)

(430)
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33.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

(@) CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS

At amortised cost

Cash and balances with licensed banks
Maoney at call and deposit placements maturing
within one month

{b} OTHER ASSETS

Other receivables, deposit and prepayments

130

2020
RM'OQ0

3,205

18,987

22,202

2020
RM'000

9,766

8,766

6,081
22,998

29,079

2019
RM'000

9,668

9,668



33.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

(c) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Ofiice
equipment and Computer
machinery equipment Total
RM'000 RM'Q00 RM'000
2020
Cost
At beginning of year/At end of year 6 23 29
Accumulated Depreciation
At beginning of year/At end of year 6 23 29
Net Book Value
As of 31 December 2020/
31 December 2019 - -
{(d) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
Computer Software
Cost
At 1 January/31 December 41 41
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 41 37
Amortisation for the year - 4
41 41

Net Book Value - -
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33.

Registration No.

201001034168 (318091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
2020 20189
RM'000 RM'000
At Amortised Cost
Non-Mudharabah Fund
Demand deposits 4 572 16,312
Commadity Murabahah 5,607 -
10,079 16,312
(1 Maturity structure of Commaodity Murabahah is as follows:
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Due within six months 5,607 -
{ii) The deposits are sourced from the following types of customers:
2020 018
RM000 RM'000
Business enterprises 2 8,552
Non-bank financial institutions 10,077 7,760
10,079 16,312

INCOME DERIVED FROM INVESTMENT OF ISLAMIC BANKING FUNDS AND

DEPOSITORS' FUNDS

2020 2019
RM'0CO0 RM'Q00

Money at call and deposit placement with
financial institutions 401 587
Financial investments at FVOCI - 138
401 725
Amortisation of premium less accretion of discount - (9)
401 716
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

(9) OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Fee income:
QOther fee income

Gain arising from sale of:
Financial investments at FVOCI

Foreign exchange
- Unrealised loss

Others

(h)  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel costs (Note i}

Establishment costs (Note ii)

Marketing expenses {Note iii)

Administration and general expenses (Note iv)

{i) Personnel costs
Salaries bonuses and allowance

Defined contribution retirement plan
Other staff related expenses
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2020
RM'000

38

(10)
1,010

1,038

2020
RM000

1,554
119

180

1,858

1,245
213
06

1,554

2019
RM'000

462

2019
RM'000

1,392
114
35
339

1,880

1,068
193
140

1,392
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

(h) OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(i) Establishment costs
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Rental of premises 81 82
information technology costs 16 -
Depraciation of property, plant and equipment - 1
Amorlisation of intangible asset - 4
Others 22 27
119 114

(iii) Marketing expenses
Advertising - 32
Others 5 3
5 35

{iv) Administration and general expenses

Legal and professional fees 163 230
Communication and transportation 17 -
Others - 109
180 339

Included in administration and general expenses is the Shariah Committee’s
remuneration of RM159,000 (2019: RM223,000).
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ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

(i) INCOME TAX EXPENSE

A numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to profit/(loss) before tax at the applicable
statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Bank

is as follows:
2020

RM000
Loss before taxation (476)
Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% -

{i) CAPITAL ADEQUACY
The compaonents of Tier f and Tier Il capital are as foliows:
2020

RM'000
Tier-1 capital
Paid-up share capital 26,850
Accumulated losses (5,043)

21,807
Less: Regulatory adjustment
Intangible assets -
Total Tier 1 capital 21,807
Total Capital base 21,807
Capital Ratios
Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio 165.606%
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 165.606%

Total Capital Ratio 165.606%
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2019
RM'000

(430)

2019
RM'000

26,850
(4,567)
22,283

22,283

22,283

169.144%
169.144%

169.144%



33.

Registration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

0) CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

The breakdown of risk-weighted assets by each major risk category is as follows:

Risk weight

0%

100%

Credit risk
Market risk
Operational risk

Total risk-weighted assets

2020 2019

Risk Risk

weighted weighted

Principal assets Principal __asseis
RM'C00 RM'000 RM'000 RM'Q00
19,694 - 23,073 -
9,891 9,891 8,550 8,550
9,891 8,550

1,941 2,133

1,336 2,491

13,168 13,174
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SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR END

Significant Changes in Regulatory Requirements

Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM") letter on Additional Measures to assist Borrowers/Customers
Affected by COVID-19 outbreak

On 24 March 2020, BNM issued a letter to all licensed banks and prescribed development financial
institutions on additional measures to be implemented to assist borrowers/customers experiencing
temporary financial constraints due to the COVID-19. These measures include:

(a)

(b)

automatic meratorium on repayment/payment on loans/financing which is effective for a period
of 6 months from 1 April 2020. In relation to any loan/financing that is granted a moratorium,
converted or restructured or rescheduled:

®
(i)
(iif)

the moratorium is excluded in the determination of the period in arrears for the
purpose of regulatory and accounting classifications;

the foansfiinancing need not be reported as rescheduled and restructured (“R&R”) in
the Centrat Credit Reference Information System (“CCRIS"); and

the R&R toansifinancing need not be classified as credit impaired in CCRIS.

The regulatory treatment above shall also apply to any requests for a moratorium or to
reschedule and restructure received by banking institutions on or before 31 December 2020,
In addition, the regulatory flexibilities specified in BNM's announcement dated 28 February
2020 on BNM's Measures to Assist Businesses and Households Affected by the COVID-19
Outbreak shall continue to be relevant where applicable.

lendingffinancing limits liberalised as follows:

(i)

(if)

requirements on lending/financing to the broad property sector, purchase of shares

and units of unit trusts fund to be uplifted with immediate effect. However, exposures

of banking institutions shall continue to comply with the policy documents Single

Counterparty Exposure Limit ("SCEL"), Credit Risk and Internal Capital Adequacy

Assessment Process (Pillar 2); and

limit for exposures to counterparties that are connected to Tenaga Nasional Berhad,

Petroliam Nasional Berhad and Telekom Malaysia Berhad based on economic

dependence factors set out in the SCEL Policy Document, is temporarily increased

from 25% to 35% of a banking institution’s total capital subject to the following;

- the higher limit is only applicable for exposures acquired until 31 December 2021;

- banking institutions must pare down any exposures in excess of 25% of total
capital by 31 December 2022; and

- banking institutions shall continue to ensure appropriate risk assessments,
monitoring and independent review of exposures in line with the expectations set
out in the policy document on Credit Risk.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR END (CONTINUED)

Significant Changes in Requiatory Requirements (continued)

Bank Negara Malaysia (“ENM”) letter on Additional Measures to assist Borrowers/Customers
Affected by COVID-19 outbreak (continued)

(c) drawdown of prudential buffers. Banking institutions are allowed during this period to:
(i) drawdown the capital conservation buffer of 2.5%;
(ii) operate below the minimum liguidity coverage ratio ("LCR") of 100%; and

(i) reduce the regulatory reserves held against expected losses to 0%.

Banking institutions will be given reasonable time to rebuild their buffers after 31 December
2020 and restore their buffer to the minimum regulatory requirements by 30 September 2021,
subject to public health concerns abating and economic conditions improving.

(d) lowering the minimum Net Stable Funding Ratio ("NSFR”) requirement to 80% when the
requirement is effective on 1 July 2020 and increasing to 100% from 30 September 2021.

In the same letter, banking institutions are reminded to ensure that any forward-looking information
used to incorporate the impact of COVID-19 on the ECL estimates is reasonable and supportable.
Banking institutions should also appropriately reflect the temporary nature of the shock, and fully
account for the economic and financial support measures that have been announced to mitigate the
impact of COVID-19 on the economy. In particular, moratoriums provided to borrowers/customers
should not automatically result in a stage transfer under MFRS 9 in the absence of other factors
relevant to the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The COVID-19 outbreak characterised by the World Health Organisation as a pandemic on 11
March 2020 as well as measures introduced by governments and regulators to tackle the outbreak
have affected the global supply chain as well as demand for goods and services and therefore had
a significant impact on the global growth. At the same time, fiscal and monetary policies have been
eased to sustain the economy.

The impacts of the pandemic, mitigated by all countercyclical measures such as government and
financial support to customers, mainly relate to expected credit losses and asset valuation. These
impacts were estimated against a background of uncertainty about the magnitude of the impact of
the outbreak on local and global economies.

Thus far the impact of COVID-19 on the Bank's results was minimal. Despite the fact, the Group has
undertaken numerous reviews of the estimates and assumptions used in the FRS9 Expected Credit
Loss model. Changes in the estimates and assumptions have resuited in slight increase in Expected
Credit Loss for the Stage 1 portfolio. The Bank is not able to predict the COVID-19's potential future
direct or indirect effects. However, the Bank remains vigilant in the performance of the credit portfolio
and will take the necessary actions to mitigate any impact.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR END (CONTINUED)

COVID-19 specific disclosures

(i Below are the exposures to COVID-19 impacted sectors

2020
RM'000

QOil and Gas/Hotels, tourism and leisuref
Retail trade {excluding food and e-commerce)/ 214,379
Transport & Storage —_—

Most of the accounts under the above mentioned sectors are in Siage 1 with exception to one account
which is classified under stage 2.

(il  One of the Bank's customer has approached the Bank for relief and support measures. The
request is being reviewed and assessed by Credit Committee.

(i)  As the current MFRS 9 models are expected to generate sufficient levels of expected credit loss
("ECL") in view of the unprecedented and on-going COVID-19 pandemic, no overlays and post-
mode! adjustments have been applied to overall level of ECLs for the year ended and as at 31
December 2020.

EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

©n 13 January 2021, the Government of Malaysia reintroduced the movement control order to curb
the soaring number of COVID-19 cases. The lockdown may have a negative impact on the Bank’s
results of operation, similar to the areas highlighted in Significant Events During the Financial Year
End. The Bank is not able to predict the potential future direct or indirect effects resulted from the
movement contral order. However, the Bank is taking actions to mitigate the impacts, and will
continue to closely monitor the impact and the related risks as they evolve.

As per disclosed in COVID-19 related disclosure, the Bank received one request for relief and

support measures, the request was subsequently approved by the Bank subsequent to the balance
sheet date.
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

The Directors of BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD state that, in their opinion, the accompanying
financial statements are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia so as o give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as of 31 December
2020 and of the financial performance and the cash flows of the Bank for the year ended on that
date.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

-
L]

—_—
e TERFHB-ALTTIOHD KHALIL

DATO ABDULLAH MAT NOH

Kuala Lumpur
18 March 2021
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STATUTORY DECLARATION BY THE OFFICER PRIMARILY RESPONSIBLE
FOR THE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK

[, ANTHONY LO CHIANG LOONG, the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management
of BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying
financial statements are, in my opinion, correct and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously
believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

ANTHONY LO CHIANG LOONG

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed ANTHONY LO CHIANG LOONG at
KUALA LUMPUR this 18 March 2021.

Before me,

43, Leboh Ampang
50100 Kuala Lumpur
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